
PO Box 388 / 388 Blohm Avenue 
Aromas, CA 95004 
Phone: (831) 726-3155 s FAX: (831) 726-3951 
www.aromaswaterdistrict.org 

Next Res. # 2018-06 

 All public records relating to an agenda item on this agenda are available for public inspection at the time the record is distributed 
to all, or a majority of the board.  Such records shall be available at the District office located at 388 Blohm Avenue, Aromas, CA. 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA 
TUESDAY, November 27, 2018 

7:00 PM 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
II. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS: President Richard Smith, Vice President Wayne Holman, Directors, 

Marcus Dutra, Wayne Norton and James Leap. 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
I. STATEMENTS OF DISQUALIFICATION 
II. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 
III. MINUTES: Motion to approve the Minutes of the October 23, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 
IV. ORAL COMMUNICATION: Anyone wishing to address the Board on informational items, staff 

reports or matters not listed on the agenda may do so during Oral Communications.  Please limit 
your comment to three minutes. The public may comment on listed Action and Public Hearing items 
at the time they are considered by the Board. 

V. PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS 
A. DIRECTORS' REPORTS 
B. ATTORNEY'S REPORT 
C. MANAGER'S REPORT 
D. CORRESPONDENCE 

IX. ACTION ITEMS: 
A. Presentation of Audited Financial Statements – Fiscal Year 2017 - 2018 

Fedak & Brown staff will present the Audited Financial Statements for Board approval. 
(DRAFT Annual Financial Report attached). 

B. Consider receiving: 1) an informational presentation from XiO Systems, and 2) an updated 
proposal regarding the purchase of XiO Systems hardware for Aromas Water District sites, in 
the amount of $13,139.00, and providing direction to Staff. 
XiO staff will provide information about their technology, and present an update and revised quote 
for XiO System equipment to replace/augment portions of the District’s system to facilitate remote 
surveillance and control of facilities. 

C. Consider receiving an update on the possible annexation of one parcel in the Rancho Larios 
area into the Aromas Water District boundary. 
Staff will present an update on the annexation process; the annexing of one parcel in the Rancho 
Larios area into the Aromas Water District boundary. 

D. Consider receiving a report regarding the possible annexation of parcels along Cole Road, and 
providing direction to Staff. 
Staff will present a report acknowledging a request to annex parcels along Cole Road to provide 
municipal water only for Board discussion and action. 

E. Financial Reports for the Month of October 2018 
Oakridge & Orchard Acres Assessment Districts are now included in the financial reports. Therefore, 
the reports show a Total Revenue of $122,113.50; Total expenditures were $85,154.96 between 
October 17, 2018 and November 16, 2018. These financials and monthly expenditures will be 
presented for discussion and approval. 

X. FUTURE MEETINGS & AGENDA ITEMS Next meeting – Wednesday, December 19, 2018 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 

President- Richard Smith 
Vice President-Wayne Holman 
Director- Marcus Dutra 
Director- Wayne Norton 
Director- James Leap 
General Manager- Robert Johnson 
Board Secretary-Louise Coombes 

 

p.6-9 

p.10-11 

p.3-5 

p.85-90 

p.63-77 

p.12 - 62 

p.78-79 

p.80-84 



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

2



Minutes of the Training Workshop & Regular Meeting of 
the Board of Directors of the Aromas Water District 

October 23, 2018 
Workshop 
I. CALL TO ORDER. The workshop of the Board of Directors of the Aromas Water District was called to order 

by President Smith on Tuesday, October 23, 2018 at 5.03 p.m. at the District office located at 388 Blohm Ave, 
Aromas, California. 

II. ROLL CALL. President Smith, Vice President Holman and Directors Norton, Leap and Dutra were present. 
Also in attendance were General Manager Robert Johnson and Counsel Bob Bosso.  

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. Director Dutra led the pledge of allegiance. 
IV. WORKSHOP. Board of Directors' Training Session, titled; "Who Does What? Best Practices in Board/Staff 

Relations". 

Return to Regular Session 
I. CALL TO ORDER. The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Aromas Water District was called to 

order by President Smith on Tuesday, October 23, 2018 at 7:14 p.m. at the District office located at 388 Blohm 
Ave, Aromas, California. 

II. ROLL CALL. President Smith, Vice President Holman and Directors Norton, Leap and Dutra were present. 
Also in attendance were General Manager Robert Johnson, Counsel Bob Bosso, and Acting Board Secretary  
Ester Girõn.  

III. STATEMENTS OF DISQUALIFICATION. There were no disqualification statements. 
IV. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS. There were no additions or deletions to the Agenda.  
V.  MINUTES. The minutes of the September 25, 2018 Board Meeting were presented for review and approval; 

there no corrections or comments. Director Norton moved for approval of the minutes and Director Leap 
seconded. Minutes were unanimously approved with all Directors present. 

VI. ORAL COMMUNICATION. There were no public comments. 
VII. REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS 

A. Director's Reports. Director Leap commented on the water situation on Cole Road. He visited the site with 
GM Johnson and CO DeAlba and found it very educational. There is likely to be a future annexation 
application encompassing several parcels on Cole Road where wells are failing.  

Director Norton attended a San Benito County Planning Commission meeting; two parcels along Highway 101 
are in the process of being re-zoned for commercial use and are within our Sphere of Influence. The question 
for the future is whether we will have problems supplying their water demand, particularly with the probability 
of additional housing being built. 

B. Attorney's Report. Counsel Bosso reported that the SB998, to alter the current legislation on terminating 
service due to non-payment, was signed by the Governor. This will take effect in February 2020, Counsel 
Bosso mentioned that there may be regional amendments and legislation to clarify certain parameters.  There 
will also need to be shut off procedures written in a variety of languages. 

Counsel Bosso mentioned that new legislation for the Public Records Act recently passed. In essence, if  the 
District wins an action against the requestor, the District can only claim attorney fees if the request is deemed 
"frivolous", which is hard to prove.  

The two tiered rate cases (Goleta & Great Oaks) are still not resolved or moving forward. 

3



C. Manager’s Report 
OPERATIONS 
GM Johnson reported that no new meters have been installed so the total number of meters remains at 957.  

Operator Zelmar sampled for lead at the Aromas School. The results show good news in that lead levels are 
well below maximum contaminant level. 

Production & Well Levels 
GM Johnson reported total production, in September 2018, was almost 11 million gallons for the month; the 
daily average at approximately 366,000 gallons. This brings the annual total to almost 79 million gallons. 

Reporting on the well levels shows that at San Juan Well there was no change since last month; Aimee Well 
was up three feet and Marshall Well is up two feet. For Carpenteria Well the graph may have an error, but 
the depth reading is correct so the level is down four feet. 

Incidents 
The storage tanks on School Road were defaced with graffiti and toilet paper. A report with pictures was 
filed with the local Sheriff in case of further occurrences. 

Staff & Board Recognition 
GM Johnson, once again, pointed out that AC Giron and ASO Coombes are going above and beyond to 
keep everything running smoothly in the office. However, GM Johnson reported that unfortunately, due to 
family issues, CSR Varela has left the District.  

GM Johnson recently represented the District at the 39th Annual Tri-County Aromas Fire Prevention 
District open house. 

Projects 
In the near future is the renovation of the District Apartment bathroom; discussions with, and bids from, a 
plumber and drywall installer have taken place. In the budget is $15,000, half of which is between plumbing 
and drywall installation; painting and floor installation may be undertaken by staff.  

With regard to technology for Board Member use; GM Johnson asked for Board preferences of different 
options to avoid use of paper Board packets and provide a device specifically for District emails. The Board 
were divided on this issue; some prefer paper, some prefer a Tablet. It resulted in the discretion of the GM 
to purchase appropriate technology for the use of the Board. 

GM Johnson reported that with regard to Marshall Yard, himself and the staff at the San Benito 
Management Resource Agency had a conference call in which it was confirmed that there is a streamlined 
process with the lot line adjustment process with local governmental agencies. GM Johnson read into the 
record an email from the San Benito Planning Department outlining the expedited process for the lot line 
adjustment. Since it arrived today, it will be in next months' Correspondence.  

D. Correspondence. GM Johnson summarized the correspondence between the District and TESCO where 
they have proposed a costly solution for the District. This segways neatly into the Action Item B on this 
month's agenda. 
Director Holman enquired about the letter from the Department of Justice. GM Johnson explained it is in 
reference to the demise of the Pinnacles Payroll company in October 2016.  
Director Norton enquired about the wharf hydrant removal on Marcus St. GM Johnson explained that the 
wharf hydrant is being encroached upon by an old tree so the hydrant needs to be removed. 

IX. ACTION ITEMS 
A. Consider receiving an update on the possible annexation of one parcel in the Rancho Larios area into 

the Aromas Water District boundary. 
GM Johnson recently attended the PVWMA Board Meeting to clarify the situation with the sole parcel in 
Rancho Larios. Mr Eilert also attended and spoke and is very appreciative for all the effort the District is 

4



making on his behalf. The PVWMA Board waived the non-exportation clause in this unique case. GM 
Johnson is planning to work to include Mr Eilert's parcel with the entire Rancho Larios group. GM Johnson 
has already begun communication for the next phase in approaching San Benito LAFCO to establish a change 
to the Districts' borders, any environmental impact or the requirement for any encroachment permits. 
After some Board discussion, Director Norton moved and Director Leap seconded a motion to approve the 
next phase and approach San Benito LAFCO at the earliest opportunity. The motion was unanimously 
accepted with all Directors present. 

B. Consider receiving a report regarding the purchase of XiO Systems hardware for Aromas Water 
District sites, in the amount of $9,948.19, and providing direction to staff. 
GM Johnson indicated that this action item is an update to the last meeting where approval was already given 
to purchase the installation of monitoring equipment at Rancho Larios Tank and Pleasant Acres Well (PAW). 
Closer scrutiny of the original proposal revealed a configuration error; PAW was incorrectly configured to be 
triggered on pressure rather than being run from the Pine Tree Tank. This means Pine Tree Tank needs a 
pressure transducer and a PLC not previously included. GM Johnson split the proposal so that Pleasant Acres 
Well and Pine Tree tank will be a new proposal which XiO is planning on presenting to the Board in 
November. The $9,948.19 is for Rancho Larios Tank in order to rectify the lack of monitoring at that site. 
No motion was necessary as the Action Item was  approved in the September meeting. 

C. Financial Reports for the month of September 2018. Total revenue for September was $120,704.83; 
Total expenditures were $190,953.60 between September 20, 2018 and October 16, 2018.  
On the Balance Sheet, Total Assets are $11,828,164.83, of which the total cash assets are $1,601,479.61 
divided between the Aromas Water District's current assets of $1,137,760.49, and the Assessment Districts' 
assets of $464,363.64. 
In the P&L Report GM Johnson reported Total Revenue for September was $113,183.58 as compared to the 
Budgeted $110,000.00. Largely due to the PG&E hydro-pressure testing, bulk water sales are up to 
$5,663.77 so far, and are likely to continue into next month. Comparing the Jul-Sep 18 column to the YTD 
Budget shows water revenue alone is over budget by $52,859.19. 
System maintenance is showing as a negative number this month as the District has received reimbursements 
for a number of items including the Garden Ave line break and gutter repair at San Juan Well. 
Director Dutra enquired about the current status of the oldest truck. GM Johnson explained that there are a 
number of options; keep the truck as a spare and utilizing it for meter reading to reduce fuel consumption as 
there is no longer heavy equipment on this truck. GM Johnson is investigating the costs involved in keeping it 
in the fleet.  
In the Monthly Expenditures After Director Dutra enquired about the City National Bank payment of 
$73,491.07; GM Johnson explained this occurs twice a year and is largely to pay off the solar field installation 
at Carpenteria, as well as Capital Projects such as Carr Tank, Rea Tank etc. The solar portion of the  loan will 
be paid off in 2021; with the remainder in 2029. 
Director Holman moved to adopt the Financial Reports as presented; and seconded by Director Dutra. The 
Financial Reports were unanimously accepted with all Directors present. 

X. FUTURE MEETINGS & AGENDA ITEMS. The next meeting will be on Tuesday, November 27, 2018.  

XI. ADJOURNMENT. President Smith adjourned the meeting at 8:27pm until Tuesday, November 27, 2018 at 
which Counsel Bosso will not be present due to his attendance at a conference, although he will be available by 
phone if needed. 

Read and approved by:  _________________________  Attest: _____________________________  
 President, Richard Smith Board Secretary, Louise Coombes 

 Date: _________________________  Date: ____________________________  

5



 
 

AWD – GM Report: October 2018 
 

 
 
 

PRODUCTION REPORT 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Totals 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Million Gal 133.6 135.38 126.9 112.37 106.15 110.17 123.42 105.97 91.27 88.152 95.304 88.983 

Acre Ft 410.0 415.4 389.4 344.8 325.7 338.05 378.7 325.16 280.05 270.49 292.43 273.03 

www.aromaswaterdistrict.org 

General Manager’s Report 
October 2018 

6



 
 

AWD – GM Report: October 2018 
 

 
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT 

 
OPERATIONS: 

• There are 957 total meters, on 902 parcels. 
• Loss Production system wide has been maintained at below 5% for over 18+ months. 
• Carpenteria and San Juan wells were operational the entire month; while Pleasant Acres well was 

down only one day. 
• Water Treatment Plant; finished water was non-detect for both iron and manganese this month. 
• Distribution testing for total Coliform; all samples negative. 
• All monthly DWR reports on Coliform, and Mn / Fe were filed on time. 
• WTP filters are being backwashed approximately every 5-7+/- days. 
• Monthly Generator in-house 15 minute testing under load. 
• Monthly well-level monitoring (see attached chart). 
• Pleasant Acres well is down as of November 14, 2018 due to a power issue.  GM Johnson is 

working to get PG&E on site to help resolve the issue.  Resolution is currently scheduled for 
November 20. 

 
MAINTENANCE: 

• Preventative maintenance and flushing were performed, as needed 
• Graffiti removal whenever it occurs – see next section 
• Chlorine chemical pump maintenance and analyzer maintenance at all wells 
• Maintenance tasks are being performed as time allows (e.g. mowing solar field) 

 
INCIDENTS: 

• None during this reporting period 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 
STAFF & BOARD RECOGNITION:  

• Administrative Services Officer (ASO) Coombes and Account Clerk (AC) Girõn continue to go 
above and beyond the call, keeping things running smoothly, since Customer Service 
Representative (CSR) Varela resigned in early October. 

• ASO Coombes and AC Girõn are documenting procedures related to the CSR position so, when 
a new person comes onboard, there will be a smooth transition into the role. 

• Chief Operator (CO) DeAlba has been keeping the District’s infrastructure functioning single-
handedly, since early October, since Operator Zelmar has been out of the office. 

• With Operator Zelmar’s absence, GM Johnson has hired another worker on a part-time 
temporary basis to work a few hours each day and be on-call until Operator Zelmar returns. 

• GM Johnson attended a North San Benito Basin SGMA meeting where the upcoming 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) was discussed. Director Leap was also present at the 
meeting.  

• GM Johnson attended the San Benito Board of Supervisors (BOS) meeting on November 20.  
The BOS was discussing bridges in San Benito County and their respective necessary work.  GM 
Johnson provided comments on the Rocks Road bridge project. 

 

7



 
 

AWD – GM Report: October 2018 
 

CONSERVATION UPDATE: 
October 2018 usage figures indicate the usual trend of customers ramping back their water usage 
as summer comes to a close.   
 

 
PROJECTS: 
 

1. District Apartment renovations 
This project is part of the Capital Budget for the current fiscal year (Remodel apartment for 
$15,000).  The bathroom was taken on first.  Next will be the installation of a sink in the entry 
room to use as a “mud-type” room, plumb the apartment with hot water, and work on the 
downstairs closet for storage. 
 
 

2. Technology for Board member use 
GM Johnson will purchase two relatively-inexpensive tablets for Board member use. This 
strategy could result in a reduction in paper usage and reduce costs in the long run.  The tablets 
may be purchased and set up before the November Board meeting. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Robert Johnson 
General Manager  
November 20, 2018 

8



Carpenteria Well (production): Previous Read = 285 feet ; Current Read = 282 feet        Marshall Well (monitoring): Previous Read = 71 feet ; Current Read = 73 feet 

San Juan Well (production): Previous Read = 124 feet ; Current Read = 126 feet           Aimee Meadows (monitoring): Previous Read = 209 feet ; Current Read = 208 feet 

Well Water Level Monitoring

Depth to Water Measurements

Date: November 13, 2018

250

260

270

280

290

300

Carpenteria

40

50

60

70

80

90

Marshall

100

110

120

130

140

150

San Juan

190

200

210

220

230

Aimee Meadows

9



CORRESPONDENCE LIST: 10/18/2018 - 11/19/2018 

DATE 
T

Y
PE

 
TO FROM SUBJECT 

10/18/18 E R. Johnson, AWD R Felsing, San Ben Cty Merging Parcels - by Public Agency 

10/19/18 M AWD J Cattaneo, SB Cty Water 
Dist 

Workshop for Development of GSP 

10/19/18 M T Kinison-Brown, 
SBC Planning 

R Johnson, AWD Lot Line Adjustment on 2551 Chittenden Road 

10/23/18 E R. Johnson, AWD R Felsing, San Ben Cty Parcel Merge (Marshall Yard) 

10/26/18 E R. Johnson, AWD M Servantez, CSDA Board Member Training Credit for Webinar 

10/29/18 E R. Johnson, AWD M Servantez, CSDA Certificates and Invoices for On-Demand 
Webinar 

10/30/18 E J Peairs, XiO R Johnson, AWD Rancho Larios Tank Proposal 

10/30/18 E R Johnson, AWD J Peairs, XiO Response to Rancho Larios Tank Proposal 

10/30/18 M J Tachibana, 
Underground 
Construction 

AWD Requesting completion of W9 

10/30/18 M AWD PG&E Notification of Rotating Outages at 7 AWD sites 

10/31/8 E R Johnson, AWD US Dept of Justice Notification of Pinnacles Payroll McEwan case 

10/31/18 E V Ralph, Monterey 
Cty 

L Coombes, AWD Response to the request for review of the 
Conflict of Interest Code. 

10/31/18 E B Doernberger, XiO R Johnson, AWD XiO Cloud SCADA at Aromas Water District 

10/31/18 E AWD CSDA Take Action Brief 

11/1/18 E R. Johnson, AWD B Nicholson, San Ben Cty LAFCO Process for annexation into AWD 

11/2/18 M L Coombes, AWD J Tachibana, Underground 
Construction 

Response to request for completion of W9 

11/2/18 E R. Johnson, AWD B Nicholson, San Ben Cty Letter on LAFCO Annexation Process 

11/2/18 E E Giron, AWD S Lemessy, SmartProcure Confirmation of receipt of Public Records 
Request 

11/5/18 E AWD A Plagge, CBRE I 
Assessment & Consulting 

Records request regarding Phase I 
Environmental Assessment for 387 Blohm Ave 

11/5/18 E R. Johnson, AWD R Montano, Monterey Cty Assignment of New Inspection Officer 

11/5/18 E SWRCB R Johnson, AWD Monthly Summary of Coliform Monitoring 

11/6/18 E SWRCB  R Johnson, AWD Monthly Fe & Mn Field Test Results 

11/7/18 M AWD LAFCO Agenda for Board Meeting Wed Nov 7, 2018 

10



CORRESPONDENCE LIST: 10/18/2018 - 11/19/2018 

DATE 
T

Y
PE

 
TO FROM SUBJECT 

11/7/18 E AWD Memb Svcs, USA North 811 Method of Excavation No Longer Required 

11/8/18 M AWD San Benito LAFCO Agenda for Board Meeting Thurs Nov 8, 2018 

11/9/18 E L Cloherty, City 
National Bank 

L Coombes, AWD Independent Confirmation of Loan for 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 

11/9/18 E R Johnson, AWD S Capron,  
1811 Cole Road, Aromas 

Cole Road Annexation 

11/9/18 E S Capron, Cole Road, 
Aromas 

R Johnson, AWD Response to Information re: Cole Road 
Annexation 

11/11/18 M R Johnson, AWD B & M Ford,  
1879 Cole Road, Aromas 

Petition for Inclusion into Cole Road 
Annexation 

11/11/18 M R Johnson, AWD G Skogen & L Mello,  
1600 Cole Road, Aromas 

Petition for Inclusion into Cole Road 
Annexation 

11/11/18 M R Johnson, AWD S Capron J Rekedal,  
1811 Cole Road, Aromas 

Petition for Inclusion into Cole Road 
Annexation 

11/15/18 M R Johnson, AWD PG&E Application for service request at 2565 San Juan 
Rd 

11/16/18 E R Johnson, AWD J Peairs, XiO Proposal for Pleasant Acres Well and Pine Tree 
Tank 

 

11



Staff Report 
To:  Board of Directors 

Re: Item IX.A – Presentation of Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 
2017-18 

Date:  November 19, 2018 

 
Summary / Discussion 
The Aromas Water District (AWD) Board of Directors is charged with the fiduciary responsibility to 
oversee and protect the assets of the AWD. The AWD is under contract with Fedak & Brown, LLP for the 
legally-required annual auditing of the financial records of the AWD.  These annual Financial Statements 
are the relied upon source of information detailing the AWD’s financial condition. They are utilized by 
our creditors, bond holders, as well as our state and county regulators.   
 
The Financial Statements for review cover the 2017-2018 Fiscal Year, which is the twelve-month period 
from July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018.  A copy of the DRAFT Financial Statements is included within this 
meeting’s Board packet. 
 
The Audit Committee is composed of Board Directors Leap and Norton, Jonathan Abadesco of Fedak & 
Brown, AWD Administrative Services Officer Coombes, AWD Accounts Clerk Girõn, AWD 
Management Consultant GM Morris, and AWD General Manager Johnson.  The Committee plans to meet 
on November 27, 2018 at 3:30pm, for an in-depth review of these Financial Statements before the 
presentation to the full Board at the meeting later that evening. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board accept the Financial Statements as presented. 
 
 
Submitted by: 
Robert Johnson 
General Manager  

12



Annual Financial Report 
For the Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2018 

DRAFT
Financial Repoinancial Re

e Fiscal Year Ecal Year E
June 30, 20June 30,

13



Elected/ Current
Name Title Appointed Term

Richard Smith President Elected 12/14 - 12/18

Wayne Holman Vice-president Elected 12/16 - 12/20

K. Wayne Norton Director Elected 11/16 - 11/20

Marcos Dultra Director Elected 12/14 - 12/18

James Leap Director Elected 12/14 - 12/18

Board of Directors as of June 30, 2018

Robert Johnson, General Manager 
388 Blohm Avenue 

P.O. Box 388 
Aromas, California 95004 

(831) 726-3155

DRAFElected/Elect
AppointAppoin

sidentsident Ell

Vice-presidentVice-president

DirectDirectoro
AFT

DirectorDirector

DirectorDir

s as of June 30, 2018of June 3

RARAAA

14



Aromas Water District 
Annual Financial Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

DRAFTict ict 
Report Rep

nded June 30, 2018nded June 30, 2018

15



-i-

Aromas Water District 
Annual Financial Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Table of Contents 

Page No. 

Table of Contents i

Financial Section 

Independent Auditor’s Report 1-2 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 3-6 

Basic Financial Statements: 
 Statements of Net Position 7-8
 Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 9
 Statements of Cash Flows 10-11 
 Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 12-31

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedules of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 32

Schedules of Pension Plan Contributions 33 

Supplementary Information Section 

Schedules of Operating Expenses 34 

Report on Compliance and Internal Controls 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
  and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on the Audit of Financial  
  Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 35-36 

DRAFTet Pension Liability et Pension L

Controls Contro

nternal Control Over Finanternal Control Over 
MattersMatte  Based on the Audsed on the Au

cordance with nce with GovernmeGovernme

16



Financial Section 

DRAFTection ection 

17



DRAFT

18



1

Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Directors 
Aromas Water District 
Aromas, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Aromas Water District (District) as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the Aromas Water District, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective 
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

DRAFTT
of co

Tesentation of 

FTin the United States

FTnal control relevant to 

AFTm material m

RAFn th e financial 

RAth auditing standards ge

RAble to financial aud

RAeral of the United StatRApecial Districts. ial Districts.  Those st

DRance about 

DRforming procedures to Ds. The proceduDmaterial missDents, theDnci

19



2

Independent Auditor’s Report, continued 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 6, and required supplementary information on pages 32 and 
33, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information in Relation to the Financial Statements as a Whole 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The schedules of operating expenses are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 27, 
2018, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. This report can be found on pages 35 and 36. 

Fedak & Brown LLP 
Cypress, California 
November 27, 2018 

DDRAFTT
ation

T
provid

Te ments as a 

pinion on the financial spinion on the financ
r purposes of additionalr purposes of additiona

mation is the responsibilation is the r
ing accounting and otheounting

subjectedsubject  to the auditing he au
onal pr procedures, includinocedures, includ

accounting ating and other rnd other r
ts themselvts them es, and other es, and other 

ed in the United States ed in the United Sta of
ts in rets in lation to the financon to the fina

DRvernment Auditing

DRernment Auditing Sta

DRation of the District’s intDain provisions ofDhat report is to Dd the resuD co

20



Aromas Water District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

3

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance 
of the Aromas Water District (District) provides an introduction to the financial statements of the District 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented here 
in conjunction with the basic financial statements and related notes, which follow this section. 

Financial Highlights
In fiscal year 2018, the District’s net position decreased 2.02% or $137,358 to $6,664,823, from 
continuing operations. 

In fiscal year 2018, the District’s operating revenues increased 18.44% or $175,920, due 
primarily to increases in water and bulk water revenues. 

In fiscal year 2018, the District’s operating expenses increased 13.27% or $101,754 to $868,622, 
due primarily to increases of $93,872 in employee benefits and pumping of $10,733; which were 
offset by a decrease of $11,935 in administrative and general expenses. 

Required Financial Statements 
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statements of Net Position, Statements 
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and Statements of Cash Flows provide information 
about the activities and performance of the District using accounting methods similar to those used by 
private sector companies.

The Statements of Net Position include all of the District’s investments in resources (assets), deferred 
outflows of resources, the obligations to creditors (liabilities), and deferred inflows of resources.  They 
also provide the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the District and 
assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District.  All of the year’s revenue and expenses are 
accounted for in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.  These statements 
measure the success of the District’s operations over the past year and can be used to determine if the 
District has successfully recovered all of its costs through its rates and other charges. These statements 
can also be used to evaluate profitability and credit worthiness. The final required financial statements are 
the Statements of Cash Flows, which provide information about the District’s cash receipts and cash 
payments during the reporting period. The Statements of Cash Flows report cash receipts, cash payments, 
and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, non-capital financing, and capital and related 
financing activities, as well as providing answers to questions such as: where did cash come from, what 
was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period. 

Financial Analysis of the District 
One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District better off or 
worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statements of Net Position and the Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report information about the District in a way that 
helps answer this question. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private 
sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of 
when the cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the District’s net position and changes in them. One can think of the 
District’s net position (the difference between assets and deferred outflows, and liabilities and deferred 
inflows), as one way to measure the District’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases 
or decreases in the District’s net position is one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or 
deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic 
conditions, population growth, zoning, and new or changed government legislation, such as changes in 
Federal and State water quality standards.

DRAFT
expenexpe

The Statements of NeThe Statement
Statements ofState Cash FlowCash Ff

ing accounting methods ing accounting methods 

he Dih strict’s investmentst’s inv
ditors (lors (liabilities), and deiabilities), and

e of returnetur , evaluating th, evaluating th
xibility of the District.  Aibility of the District.  A

evenues, Expenevenues, Expenses, and Cses
ct’s operations over thct’s operations over the p

ered all of its costs thed all of its costs throurou
profitability and credit wobility and credit wo

Flows, which provide inFlows, which prov
porting period. The Stateporting period. The Sta

h resulting from operath resulting from operat
well as providing awell as providing

t was the chat was the ch

strstr

21



Aromas Water District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

4

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 12 
through 31. 

Statements of Net Position
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position. In the case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources of the District exceeded 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $6,664,823 as of June 30, 2018. 

A portion of the District’s net position reflects the District’s investment in capital assets (net of 
accumulated depreciation) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding 
(43.48% as of June 30, 2018). The District uses these capital assets to provide services to customers 
within the District’s service area; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. (See 
Note 6 for further discussion) 

At the end of fiscal year 2018, the District showed a positive balance in its unrestricted net position of 
$694,780.  

2018 2017 Change

Assets:
Current assets $ 4,271,744       4,330,857       (59,113)          
Capital assets, net 7,179,211       7,468,147       (288,936)        

Total assets 11,450,955     11,799,004     (348,049)        

Deferred outflows of resources 187,200          174,771          12,429            

Liabilities:
Current liabilities 275,576          326,217          (50,641)          
Non-current liabilities 4,690,047       4,827,914       (137,867)        

Total liabilities 4,965,623       5,154,131       (188,508)        

Deferred inflows of resources 7,709              17,463            (9,754)            

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 2,898,043       2,957,396       (59,353)          
Restricted 3,072,000       3,215,519       (143,519)        
Unrestricted 694,780          629,266          65,514            

Total net position $ 6,664,823       6,802,181       (137,358)        

Condensed Statements of Net Position

DRAFT
availavai

balance in its unrebalance in 

20182018 2

$ 4,271,744$ 4,271,7444
7,179,2117,179,211              

11,4501       

es           

iesies

s of Net Positions of Net Po

AFAFFF
RARARARARR

22



Aromas Water District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

5

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

2018 2017 Change

Revenue:
Operating revenues $ 1,129,944       954,024          175,920          
Non-operating revenues 216,103          227,349          (11,246)          

Total revenue 1,346,047       1,181,373       164,674          

Expense:
Operating expense 868,622          766,868          101,754          
Depreciation expense 444,463          451,158          (6,695)            
Non-operating expense 170,320          205,022          (34,702)          

Total expense 1,483,405       1,423,048       60,357            

Changes in net position (137,358)        (241,675)        104,317          

Net position – beginning of year 6,802,181       7,043,856       (241,675)        

Net position – end of year $ 6,664,823       6,802,181       (137,358)        

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

The statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position show how the District’s net position 
changed during the fiscal years. 

A closer examination of the sources of changes in net position reveals that: 

In fiscal year 2018, the District’s net position decreased 2.02% or $137,358 to $6,664,823, from 
continuing operations.  See note 6 for further discussion. 

In fiscal year 2018, the District’s operating revenues increased 18.44% or $175,920, due primarily to 
increases in water and bulk water revenues. The District’s non-operating revenues decreased 4.95% or 
$11,246 to $216,103, due primarily to a decrease of $31,380 in voter approved assessment; which was 
offset by an increase of $14,534 in property taxes. 

In fiscal year 2018, the District’s operating expenses increased 13.27% or $101,754 to $868,622, due 
primarily to increases of $93,872 in employee benefits and pumping of $10,733; which were offset by a 
decrease of $11,935 in administrative and general expenses. The District’s non-operating expenses 
decreased $34,702 to $170,320, due primarily to decreases of $13,375 in bond issuance cost, $13,134 in 
interest expense, and $8,193 in miscellaneous expense. 

Capital Asset Administration 
At the end of fiscal year 2018, the District’s investment in capital assets amounted to $7,179,221 (net of 
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, water transmission and 
distribution systems, buildings and structures, equipment, and vehicles. Major capital asset additions 
during the year include improvements to the water transmission and distribution system. 

DRAFT
  

           

55 1,423,0            

7,358)7,358 (241,675(24         

 6,802,1816,802,181        7,04343

6,664,823664 823       6,664,823664,823        TTTTTTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFT
AFAFFFchanges nges in net position in net position 

ff changes in net position changes in net pff

ct’s net position ct’s net position decreaecre
ote 6 for further discussionfor further discussion

District’s operating reveDistrict’s operating
bulk water revenues. Tbulk water revenues. T

due primarily to a decdue primarily to 
14,534 in propert14,534 in prope

trict’s optrict’s op
72 i72 i

23



Aromas Water District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

6

Capital Asset Administration, continued 
Changes in capital assets for 2018, were as follows: 

Balance Transfers/ Transfers/ Balance
2017 Additions Deletions 2018

Non-depreciable assets $ 331,196          -                     -                     331,196          
Depreciable assets 12,165,812     155,527          -                     12,321,339     
Accumulated depreciation (5,028,861)     (444,463)        -                     (5,473,324)     

Total capital assets, net $ 7,468,147       7,179,211       

Debt Administration 
Changes in long-term debt in 2018, were as follows:

Balance Principal Balance
2017 Additions Payments 2018

Bonds payable $ 3,193,000 -                     (121,000)        3,072,000       
Notes payable 1,317,751 -                     (108,583)        1,209,168       

Total long-term debt $ 4,510,751 -                     (229,583)        4,281,168       

Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position
Management does not foresee any conditions which could have a significant impact on the District’s 
current financial position, net position, or operating results in terms of past, present, and future. 

Requests for Information 
This financial report is designed to provide the District’s funding sources, customers, stakeholders, and 
other interested parties with an overview of the District’s financial operations and financial condition. 
Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to request 
additional financial information, please contact the District’s General Manager at 388 Blohm Avenue, 
Aromas, California 95004.  DRAFTP

dditions Paymdditions

                                          -
                                      -

751751                               -FTFTTT
AAAFT
AFT
AAAFAFcial Positionosition

onditions which conditions which could h
ion, or operating results inion, or operating resu

esigned to provide the Diesigned to provide
with an overview of thwith an overview of 

ve questions regarding ve questions regarding 
ormation, please coormation, please

24



Basic Financial Statements 

DRAFTStatementsStatemen

25



Aromas Water District 
Statements of Net Position 

June 30, 2018 
With comparative amounts for June 30, 2017 

7

2018 2017

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 1,010,316       942,686          
Cash and cash equivalents – restricted (note 2) 463,763          545,951          
Accounts receivable, net 150,780          137,009          
Assessment receivable – restricted 2,608,237       2,669,568       
Property taxes receivable 2,926              1,262              
Interest receivables 3,755 1,801
Prepaid expenses 9,053              8,666              
Inventory and supplies 22,914            23,914            

Total current assets 4,271,744       4,330,857       

Non-current assets:
Capital assets – not being depreciated (note 3) 331,196          331,196          
Capital assets – being depreciated (note 3) 6,848,015       7,136,951       

Total non-current assets 7,179,211       7,468,147       

Total assets 11,450,955     11,799,004     

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows – pensions (note 7) 187,200          174,771          

Total deferred outflows of resources $ 187,200          174,771          

Continued on next page

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statementsDRAFT331,196331,          
6,848,01548,01       

7,179       

1    

note 7)note 7)

utflows of resourcesutflows of resources

ee

notes to the basic finanotes to the basic

T
4,2714        4

TTTFTFTFFFF

26



Aromas Water District 
Statements of Net Position, continued 

June 30, 2018 
With comparative amounts for June 30, 2017 

8

2018 2017

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 40,767            36,329            
Accrued interest 49,842            52,481            
Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 271                 2,526              
Customer deposits and unearned revenue 12,236            28,221            
Long-term liabilities – due within one year:

Compensated absences (note 4) 14,330            17,077            
Bonds payable (note 5) 44,000            81,000            
Notes payable (note 5) 114,130          108,583          

Total current liabilities 275,576          326,217          

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term liabilities – due in more than one year:

Compensated absences (note 4) 4,777              5,692              
Net pension liability (note 7) 562,232          501,054          
Bonds payable (note 5) 3,028,000       3,112,000       
Notes payable (note 5) 1,095,038       1,209,168       

Total non-current liabilities 4,690,047       4,827,914       

Total liabilities 4,965,623       5,154,131       

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows – pensions (note 7) 7,709              17,463            

Total deferred inflows of resources 7,709              17,463            

Net position (note 6):
Net investment in capital assets 2,898,043       2,957,396       
Restricted 3,072,000       3,215,519       
Unrestricted 694,780          629,266          

Total net position $ 6,664,823       6,802,181       

-                     -                     
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

DRAFT4,7774,74,7774,77
562,562,

3,0       
   

es

T
275            

eses
nsions (note 7)(note 7)

eferred inflows of resoeferred inflows of r

6):6):
capital assetscapital assets

TTTFF

27



Aromas Water District 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
With comparative amounts for June 30, 2017 

9

2018 2017

Operating revenues:
Water revenue $ 1,078,784       954,024          
Connection fees 51,160            -                     

Total operating revenues 1,129,944       954,024          

Operating expenses:
Pumping 150,126          139,393          
Water treatment 16,029            15,829            
Administration and general 71,340            83,275            
Salaries and wages 433,763          424,879          
Employee benefits 197,364          103,492          

Total operating expenses 868,622          766,868          

Operating income before depreciation 261,322          187,156          
Depreciation expense (444,463)        (451,158)        

Operating loss (183,141)        (264,002)        

Non-operating revenue(expense):
Property taxes 75,523            60,989            
Voter approved assessment 128,761          160,141          
Interest income 11,819            6,219              
Bond issuance cost -                     (13,375)          
Interest expense (163,469)        (176,603)        
Miscellaneous expense (6,851)            (15,044)          

Total non-operating revenues, net 45,783            22,327            

Changes in net position (137,358)        (241,675)        

Net position – beginning of year 6,802,181 7,043,856

Net position – end of year $ 6,664,823       6,802,181       

-                     -                     
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

DRAFT
44         4
197,3               

868,62286             

261,32261,32          
(444,4        

(       

pensepense

perating revenues, nperating revenu

in net positiin net posit

f yef ye

TTFTFTFTFTFF

28



Aromas Water District 
Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
With comparative amounts for June 30, 2017 

10 

2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from customers for sales and service $ 1,091,383       824,879          
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers (390,813)        (384,105)        
Cash paid to employees (439,680)        (416,446)        

Net cash provided by operating activities 260,890          24,328            

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Proceeds from property taxes and assessments 263,951          404,748          

Net cash provided by non-capital financing 
  activities 263,951          404,748          

Cash flows from capital and related financing 
  activities:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (155,527)        (97,575)          
Principal paid on long-term debt (229,583)        (167,715)        
Interest paid on long-term debt (166,108)        (178,682)        
Cost of bond issuance -                     (14,875)          

Net cash used in capital and related financing 
  activities (551,218)        (458,847)        

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest earnings 11,819            6,219              

Net cash provided by investing activities 11,819            6,219              

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (14,558)          (23,552)          

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,488,637       1,512,189       

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,474,079       1,488,637       

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to 
  statements of net position:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,010,316       942,686          
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 463,763          545,951          

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 1,474,079       1,488,637       

-                     -                     
Continued on next page

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

DRAFT(155,52755,52        
(229,5        
(16        

    

elated financing financing 

tivities:tiviti

ded by investing activitided by investing 

rease in cash and cash rease in cash and cash 

alents, beginninalents, beginn

ts, end ts, end 

T
26           

TTFF

29



Aromas Water District 
Statements of Cash Flows, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
With comparative amounts for June 30, 2017 

11 

2018 2017

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
  provided by operating activites:

Operating loss $ (183,141)        (264,002)        

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
  cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 444,463          451,158          
Other non-operating (6,851)            (15,044)          

Change in assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
  liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources

(Increase)decrease in assets and deferred outflows:
Accounts receivable, net (13,771)          (137,009)        
Other receivables (1,954)            (1,163)            
Prepaid expenses (387)               7,217              
Inventory and supplies 1,000              (2,365)            
Deferred outflows – pensions (12,429)          (86,922)          

Increase(decrease) in liabilities and deferred inflows:
Accounts payable 4,438              5,646              
Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities (2,255)            2,676              
Customer deposits and unearned revenue (15,985)          24,071            
Compensated absences (3,662)            5,757              
Net pension liability 61,178            64,871            
Deferred inflows – pensions (9,754)            (30,563)          

Total adjustments 444,031          288,330          

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 260,890          24,328            

-                     -                     
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

DRAFT(13,771(               
(1,954)(1,              

(387(38               
1             

          (

eferred inflows:rred inflows

l liabilitiesl liabiliti
nearned revenuenearned rev

es
ityy

ws ws –– pensions pensions

djustmentsdjustm

ovided by opeovided by op

30



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

12 

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity 

The Aromas Water District (District) was formed on July 24, 1959, pursuant to the provisions of the 
California Water Code, Division 12, and Section 30321 thereof. The District takes water from three water 
wells located in Aromas to serve 953 connections within its jurisdiction. The District is dedicated to 
providing a reliable supply of high quality water. The District is governed by a five-member Board of 
Directors who serves overlapping four-year terms. 

The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity. The 
District is the primary governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected governing board 
that is elected by the citizens in a general popular election. Component units are legally separate 
organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The 
District is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body 
and: 1) It is able to impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the organization to 
provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. 

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the District 
is that the costs of providing water to its service area on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges (water sales), capital grants, and similar funding.  Revenues and expenses 
are recognized on the full accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized in the accounting period 
in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred, regardless of when the 
related cash flows take place. 

Operating revenues and expenses, such as water sales and water purchases, result from exchange 
transactions associated with the principal activity of the District. Exchange transactions are those in which 
each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Management, administration, and depreciation 
expenses are also considered operating expenses.  Other revenues and expenses not included in the above 
categories are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

C. Financial Reporting 

The District’s basic financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as applied to enterprise funds.  The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The District solely operates as a 
special-purpose government which means it is only engaged in business-type activities; accordingly, 
activities are reported in the District’s proprietary fund. 

The District has adopted the following GASB pronouncements in the current year: 

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting 
and financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions 
(OPEB).  It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about 
financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities.  

This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 45 – Accounting and Financial Reporting by 
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57 – OPEB
Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB.

f the orf the 
ere is a potenere is 

al burdens on, the pal burdens o

d, which is used to accoud, which is used to accou
te business enterprise, whbusiness ent

ce area on a continuing bn a co
capital grants, and similarapital grants, and sim

accounting.nting.  Revenues are  Revenues ar
are recognizedognized in the p in the p

es, such as watees, such as r sales sal
e principal activity of rincipal activity of the the 

es up essentially equal vaes up essentially equal va
ered operating expenses. ered operating expen

d as non-oped as no rating revenuating revenu

ngng

al statemenal stateme
nited nited 

31



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

13 

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
C. Financial Reporting, continued 

In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 81 – Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements. The 
objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest 
agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a 
beneficiary of the agreement. 

This Statement requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable split-interest 
agreement recognize assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at the inception of the 
agreement. Furthermore, this Statement requires that a government recognize assets representing its 
beneficial interests in irrevocable split-interest agreements that are administered by a third party, if the 
government controls the present service capacity of the beneficial interests.  This Statement requires that a 
government recognize revenue when the resources become applicable to the reporting period. 

In March 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 85 – Omnibus 2017.  The objective of this Statement is 
to address practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain 
GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending 
component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits 
(pensions and other postemployment benefits [OPEB]). 

In May 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 86 – Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues.  The primary 
objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-
substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary 
assets acquired with only existing resources—resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt—are 
placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves 
accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to 
financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance. 

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position 

1. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources; and disclosures 
of contingent assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported changes in net position during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Substantially all of the District’s cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The District considers 
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash 
equivalents.

3. Investments 

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for 
that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or 
losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments. 

DRAFT
7.  7.  The oT

plementation anplement
opics including issueopics includin

d application, and postd application, and 

 Certain Debt ExtinguisCertain Deb
sistency in accounting ain acc

uidance dance for transactions ifor transactio
es—resources esources other than other than

le purpose se of extinguishof extinguish
for prepaid insurafor prepaid insurance ona

defeased in substance. defeased in substanc

s, Liabilities,Liabilities, Deferred I Deferred I

f the basic financial statef the basic financial sta
s management to makes management to m

tflows of resourctflows of resou
ferred outfferred outf

statemstatem

32



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

14 

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position, continued 

4. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. When management 
deems customer accounts uncollectible, the District uses the allowance method for the reservation and 
write-off of those accounts. 

5. Property Taxes and Assessments 

The County of Monterey and the County of San Benito Assessor’s Offices assess all real and personal 
property within the Counties each year. The County of Monterey and the County of San Benito Tax 
Collector’s Offices bill and collect the District’s share of property taxes and assessments.  In 1993, 
the Counties adopted the alternative method of secured property tax apportionment available under 
Chapter 3, Part 8, Division 1 (commencing section 4701) of the Revenue and Taxation Code of the 
State (also known as the “Teeter Plan”). This alternative method provides for funding each taxing 
entity included in the Teeter Plan with its total secured property taxes during the year the taxes are 
levied, including any amount uncollected at fiscal year- end. Under this plan, the Counties assume an 
obligation under a debenture or similar demand obligation to advance funds to cover expected 
delinquencies, and by such financing, Aromas Water District receives the full amount of secured 
property taxes levied each year and, therefore, no longer experiences delinquent taxes. Property tax in 
California is levied in accordance with Article 13A of the State Constitution at one percent (1%) of 
countywide assessed valuations. 

Property taxes receivable at year-end are related to property taxes collected by the County of 
Monterey and the County of San Benito, which have not been credited to the District’s cash balance 
as of June 30.  The property tax calendar is as follows:  

Lien date March 1 
Levy date July 1 
Due dates November 1 and March 1 
Collection dates December 10 and April 10 

6. Materials and Supplies Inventory 

Materials and supplies inventory consists primarily of water meters, and pipes and pipefittings for 
repair and maintenance to the District’s water transmission and distribution system.  Inventory is 
valued at cost using a first-in, first-out cost method. Inventory items are charged to expense at the 
time that individual items are withdrawn from inventory or consumed. 

7. Prepaid Expenses 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements. 

DRAFT
RevenRev

thod providethod 
opertoperty taxes duriny taxet

end. Under this plan, thend. Under this p
bbligation to advance funligation to advance 

ater District receives thater District receives th
o longer experiences delionger experi

le 13A of the State Consf the 

d are relaterela d to properd to proper
Benito, which have not beenito, which have not be

calendar is as follows:  calendar is as follow

March 1 March 1 
July 1 July 1 
November No

ion dates Decembion dates Decem

d Supplies Inventory d Supplies Invent

s inventory cos inventory c
to the Dto the D

inin

33



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

15 

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position, continued 

8. Capital Assets 

Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. District policy has set the 
capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $1,000. Donated assets are recorded at estimated 
fair market value at the date of donation. Upon retirement or other disposition of capital assets, the 
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective balances and any gains or 
losses are recognized. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 
of the assets as follows: 

Water systems – 20 to 40 years 
Office buildings and improvements – 35 years 
Office furniture and fixtures – 3 to 5 years 
Vehicles – 5 years 

9. Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption of resources applicable to future periods.

10. Compensated Absences 

The District’s policy is to permit employees to accumulate earned vacation. Upon termination of 
employment, employees are paid all unused vacation. 

11. Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquisition of resources applicable to future periods. 

12. Net Position 

The District follows the financial reporting requirements of the GASB and reports net position under 
the following classifications: 

Net investment in capital assets – consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
and reduced by any debt outstanding against the acquisition, construction, or improvement of 
those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt, 
are included in this component of net position. 

Restricted component of net position – consists of assets that have restrictions placed upon 
their use by external constraints imposed either by creditors (debt covenants), grantors, 
contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law 
through enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted component of net position – the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the 
determination of the net investment in capital assets or restricted components of net position. 

DRAFTion of resources applicabion of resources appl

 to accumulate earned vumulate
d vacation. vacati

esent the acquisesent the acquisition of reition of re

nancial reporting requicial reporting requiremrem
tions: ions: 

ment in capital assets ment in capital assets – co– 
ed by any debt outstanded by any debt outstand

. Deferred outflo. Deferred outf
the acquisitithe acquisiti

is compis comp

34



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

16 

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and investments as of June 30, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 

2018

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,010,316       
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 463,763          

Total cash and investments $ 1,474,079       

Cash and investments as of June 30, consist of the following: 

2018

Cash on hand $ 100
Deposits with financial institutions 682,643          
Investments 791,336          

Total $ 1,474,079       

As of June 30, the District’s authorized deposit had the following maturities: 

2018

Deposits in California Local Agency 
  Investment Fund (LAIF) 193 days

Investment in State Investment Pool 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by 
the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair 
value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at 
amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF 
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based 
on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

The District’s deposit and withdrawal restrictions and limitations are as follows: 

Same day transaction processing occurs for orders received before 10:00 a.m. 
Next day transactions processing occurs for orders received after 10:00 a.m. 
Maximum limit of 15 transactions (combination of deposits and withdrawals) per month. 
Minimum transaction amount requirement of $5,000, in increments of $1,000. 
Withdrawals of $10,000,000 or more require 24 hours advance. 
Prior to funds transfer, an authorized person must call LAIF to do a verbal transaction. 

DRAFT
682
791,33

$ 1,474,079$ 1,474TTFTFTe following maturities: following ma

a Local Agency cal Agency 
(LAIF)(LAIF)

FF
l l 

icipant in the Local ipant in the Local AgenAgen
Code under the oversight nder the oversight 

vestment in this pool is vestment in this p
he District’s pro-rata sharhe District’s pro-rata sh
o the amortized cost of o the amortized cost of 

ds maintained by Lds maintained by

thdrawal thdrawal 

35



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

17 

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents, continued
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy  

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District in accordance with the 
California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive).  The table 
also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, 
where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer

5 years None None
5 years None None
5 years 30% 10%

270 days 10% 10%
N/A 20% None

State and local bonds, notes and warrants N/A None None
N/A None None

Authorized
Investment Type

California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

Money market mutual funds
Commercial paper (prime)

U.S. Treasury obligations
Federal agency and bank obligations
Certificates-of-deposit (negotiable or placed)

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty 
(e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment 
or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. With respect to investments, custodial 
credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does 
not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or 
government investment pools (such as LAIF). 

The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy 
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than 
the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution 
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral 
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).  The 
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount 
deposited by the public agencies.  

As of June 30, 2018, the District’s bank balances, up to $250,000, are federally insured and the remaining 
balance is collateralized in accordance with the Code; however, the collateralized securities are not held 
in the District’s name. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value 
to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the District can manage its exposure to interest 
rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash 
flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio matures or comes close to maturity evenly over 
time as necessary to provide for cash flow requirements and liquidity needed for operations. 

As of June 30, 2018, the District maintained no investments subject to market interest rate risk 
fluctuations. 

DRAFT
ss

AA
N/A NonN/A
N/A NoN/A

t, in the event of the faevent
ecover itscover it  deposits or wilosits o

tside party. party. 

s s is the risk that, in theis the risk that, in the
a government will a government wil not b

the possession of anotthe possession of anothe
ly to direct investmentto direct investments ins in

ment’s indirect investmement’s indirect investme
ools (such as LAIF). ools (such as LAIF)

rnment Code and the Drnment Code and the D
d limit the exposured limit the expos

r deposits: Ther deposits: Th
 or local or local

latelate

36



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

18 

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents, continued
Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization. The District’s investment in LAIF is not rated. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The District’s investment policy contains no limitations on the amounts that can be invested in any one 
issuer as beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. There were no investments in any 
one issuer (other than for U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that 
represent 5% or more of total District’s investments as of June 30, 2018. 

(3) Capital Assets 
Changes in capital assets for 2018, were as follows: 

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
2017 Transfers Transfers 2018

Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 331,196          -                     -                     331,196          

Total non-depreciable assets 331,196          -                     -                     331,196          

Depreciable assets:
Water systems 11,609,735     155,527          -                     11,765,262
Office building and improvements 387,261          -                     -                     387,261          
Office furniture and fixtures 93,467            -                     -                     93,467            
Vehicles 75,349            -                     -                     75,349            

Total depreciable assets 12,165,812     155,527          -                     12,321,339

Accumulated depreciation (5,028,861)     (444,463) -                     (5,473,324)

Total depreciable assets, net 7,136,951       (288,936)        -                     6,848,015       

Total capital assets, net $ 7,468,147       7,179,211       

Major capital assets additions during the year include improvements to the District’s water systems. 

(4) Compensated Absences 
The changes in compensated absences balance in 2018, were as follows: 

Balance Balance
2017 Additions Deletions 2018

$ 22,769            16,887            (20,549)          19,107            

DRAFTdditions/dditions/
Transfers TrTransfers

96 -96                          -

31,19631,1931,19631,

11,609,735, ,11,609,73511,609,735
387,261387,261387,261387,261

93,46793,46793,46793,467
75,34975,34975,34975,349

12,165,12,165,

(5(5(5(5

netnet

FTFTTT
AFAFAFAFAFAFAFAF

DRDRDRDRDD

37



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

19 

(5) Long-Term Debt 
Changes in long-term debt in 2018, were as follows: 

Balance Balance
2017 Additions Payments 2018

Bonds payable:
Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds
  Orchard Acres Assessment District 2008 Series A $ 420,000          -                     (10,000)          410,000          
  Assessment District No. 2013-1 Series 2014 2,693,000       -                     (31,000)          2,662,000       
Special Tax Bond
  Community Facilities District No. 98-1 80,000            -                     (80,000)          -                     

Total bonds payable 3,193,000       -                     (121,000)        3,072,000       

Notes payable:
National City Note 1,179,465       -                     (75,415)          1,104,050       
Solar Energy Project - Taxable project loan 138,286          -                     (33,168)          105,118          

Total notes payable 1,317,751       -                     (108,583)        1,209,168       

Total long-term debt 4,510,751       -                     (229,583)        4,281,168       

Current portion (189,583)        (158,130)        

Non-current portion $ 4,321,168       4,123,038       

Orchard Acres Assessment District, 2008 Limited Obligation Improvement Bond, Series A 

In 2008, pursuant to the Assessment Bond Law and Resolution No. 2008-04, the District issued a limited 
obligation bond under a fiscal agent agreement between the District and Union Bank in the amount of 
$498,000. The proceeds from the bond financed the connection of 11 parcels of land in an unincorporated 
area of the County of San Benito, known as Orchard Acres, to the District’s municipal water supply 
system. The bond is a limited obligation to the District, and payable solely from the proceeds of unpaid 
assessments levied on the 11 parcels within Orchard Acres. Terms of the bond call for semi-annual 
interest payable on March 2nd and September 2nd of each year, and annual debt service payment of 
principal on September 2nd of each year. The interest on the bond escalates starting at a rate of 4.80% in 
2013 to 6.10% at maturity in 2038.  

-                       
-                                   

                             -

0,7510,751                                           --

(189,583)9,583)

4,321,1684,321,1684

TTFFFTFTTTFTFT
AFAFAFAFLimited Obligation Impd Obligation Imp

Bond Law and RBond Law and Resolutiones
ent agreement betweenent agreement betwee  th

e bond financed the connbond financed the conn
Benito, known as Orchar, known as Orchar

mited obligation to the Diited obligation to
the 11 parcels within Othe 11 parcels within 

March 2March nd and SeptembSeptemb
22ndnd of each year. T of each year

in 2038.  in 2038.  

38



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

20 

(5) Long-Term Debt, continued 
Orchard Acres Assessment District, 2008 Limited Obligation Improvement Bond, Series A, continued 

Annual maturity and interest on the bond are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2019 $ 10,000            24,733            34,733
2020 10,000            24,123            34,123
2021 10,000            23,512            33,512
2022 15,000            22,748            37,748
2023 15,000            21,832            36,832

2024-2028 85,000            94,811            179,811
2029-2033 110,000          65,039            175,039
2034-2038 155,000          25,191            180,191

Total 410,000          301,989 711,989

Current (10,000)          

Non-current $ 400,000          

Assessment District No. 2013-1, Limited Obligation Improvement Bond, Series 2014 

In 2014, pursuant to the Assessment Bond Law and Resolution No. 2014-09, the District issued a limited 
obligation bond in the amount of $2,723,613. The proceeds from the bond financed 47 water and fire 
service connections and 12 fire service only connections to particular residences on Oakridge Drive and 
Via del Sol. The bond is a limited obligation to the District, and payable solely from the proceeds of 
unpaid assessments levied on the Assessment District. Terms of the bond call for semi-annual interest 
payable on March 2nd and September 2nd of each year, and annual debt service payment of principal on 
September 2nd of each year. The interest on the bond is stated at 4.00% and matures in 2055.  DRAFT

99
,191,191

301,989301 71TTFTFTTTTT
AAbligation Improvement Btion Improvement B

ond Law and Rond Law and Resolution Nesolution N
2,723,613. The proceeds2,723,613. The pr

ervice only connections tervice only connection
mited obligation to the Dted obligation to the D

on the Assessment Distrin the Assessment Distri
d September 2d September 2ndnd of each  of 

year. The interest on the year. The interest on the

39



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

21 

(5) Long-Term Debt, continued
Assessment District No. 2013-1, Limited Obligation Improvement Bond, Series 2014, continued 

Annual maturity and interest on the bond are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2019 $ 33,000            105,820 138,820
2020 34,000            104,480 138,480
2021 35,000            103,100 138,100
2022 37,000            101,660 138,660
2023 38,000            100,160 138,160

2024-2028 215,000          476,140 691,140
2029-2033 260,000          428,800 688,800
2034-2038 318,000          371,200 689,200
2039-2043 385,000          301,100 686,100
2044-2048 471,000          215,820 686,820
2049-2053 573,000          111,700 684,700
2054-2055 263,000          10,620            273,620

Total 2,662,000 2,430,600 5,092,600

Current (33,000)          

Non-current $ 2,629,000

Community Facilities District No. 98-1, Special Tax Bond 

In 1998, pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 and Resolution No. 98-22, the 
District issued a special tax bond in the principal amount not to exceed $990,000.  The proceeds from the 
bond financed the acquisition and construction of certain public improvements to meet the needs of 
existing and new development within Community Facilities District No. 98-1 (CFD District) of the 
Aromas Water District.  The bond is payable from a special tax approved by the electors of the CFD 
District.  Terms of the bond call for semi-annual interest payable on March 2nd and September 2nd of each 
year, and annual debt service payment of principal on September 2nd of each year. The bond interest is 
stated at 6.10% and matures on 2019. In 2018, the District paid off the balance of the bond in full.  

National City Note Payable 

In 2006, the District entered into a loan agreement with Santa Barbara Bank & Trust, N.A. and borrowed 
$854,318.  The proceeds of the loan financed the improvement to the District’s water treatment and 
distribution system. 

In 2011, the District refinanced its loan obtained in 2006, and borrowed additional funds to total 
$1,457,578.  The proceeds of the loan financed the improvement to the District’s water treatment and 
distribution system extended to consist of the replacement of, and improvement to, the site of the 
Carpenteria well and improvements to the booster station. 

DRAFT
0000

1,1001,100
215,820215, 686
111,7001 6
10,6200,62                 

2,430,6002,43

3,000)00)

2,629,000,6 AFT
AFT
AFAFTT
AARARA. 98-1, Special Tax Bond. 98-1, Special Tax Bo

lo-Roos Community Foos Community Facac
x bond in the principal x bond in the prin am

uisition and constructionuisition and construct
velopment within Commvelopment within Comm

  The bond is paya  The bond is p
nd call for semnd call for sem

e paymee payme
201201

40



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

22 

(5) Long-Term Debt, continued 
National City Note Payable, continued 

In 2015, the District refinanced its loan obtained in 2011, with the Municipal Finance Corporation and 
borrowed $1,323,721 on a tax-exempt basis and $201,966 on a taxable basis. The proceeds of the 
additional funds were used to acquire and install a solar energy project at the Carpenteria well site. The 
interest rates on the tax-exempt note and the taxable note are stated at 3.00% and 2.75%, respectively, and 
mature in 2030 and 2021, respectively. The terms of the notes call for semi-annual debt service payment 
of principal and interest payable on May 1st and November 1st of each year. The notes are secured by a 
pledge of and lien on the net revenues of the District’s water system. 

Annual maturity and interest on the tax-exempt note are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2019 $ 77,694            32,543            110,237          
2020 80,043            30,195            110,238          
2021 82,462            27,776            110,238          
2022 84,954            25,283            110,237          
2023 87,522            22,715            110,237          

2024-2028 478,926          72,261            551,187          
2029-2030 212,449          8,026              220,475          

Total 1,104,050       218,799          1,322,849       

Current (77,694)          

Non-current $ 1,026,356       

Annual maturity and interest on the taxable note are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2019 $ 34,087            2,658              36,745            
2020 35,031            1,714              36,745            
2021 36,000            744                 36,744            

Total 105,118          5,116              110,234          

Current (34,087)          

Non-current $ 71,031            

33  
,195,195       

27,77627,7 2 1          
25,2832          2 11               
22,715,71              2      
72,26172,2                     

9 8,026                   

4,05050 218,79918,79                2

(77,694)(77,694)     

1,026,3561,026,3 AAAFAFAFARARARARA
on the taxable note are astaxable note are as

Year PrincipalYear Princip

019 $ 34019 $ 34
00          

  DDDRDRDD

41



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

23 

(6) Net Position 
Calculation of net position as of June 30, were as follows: 

2018

Net investments in capital assets:
Capital assets, net $ 7,179,211
Notes payable, current (114,130)
Notes payable, non-current (1,095,038)
Bonds payable, current (44,000)          
Bonds payable, non-current (3,028,000)

Total net investments in capital assets 2,898,043

Restricted for debt service:
Cash and cash equivalents – restricted 463,763          
Assessment receivable – restricted 2,608,237

Total restricted for debt service 3,072,000

Unrestricted net position:
  Non-spendable net position:

Inventory and supplies 22,914            
Prepaid expenses 9,053              

  Total non-spendable net position 31,967            

  Spendable net position:
Unrestricted 662,813          

  Total spendable net position 662,813          

Total unrestricted net position 694,780          

Total net position $ 6,664,823

(7) Defined Benefit Pension Plans
Plan Description 

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Public Agency Cost-
Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Pension Plan (Plan or PERF C) administered by the California 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).  The Plan consists of a miscellaneous risk pool and a 
safety risk pool, which are comprised of individual employer miscellaneous and safety plans, 
respectively.  Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and the District’s 
resolution.  CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plan 
regarding benefit provisions, assumptions, and membership information that can be found on CalPERS 
website or may be obtained from their executive office at 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814. 

    
2,6

3

e net positione net position

ition:ition:

pendable net positionpendable net positi

Total unrestricted net posotal unrestricted net pos

Total net positionTotal net positio

TTTT

ion ion 

42



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

24 

(7) Defined Benefit Pension Plans, continued
Benefits Provided 

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death 
benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of 
credited service, equal to one year of full time employment.  Members with five years of total service are 
eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty 
disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: The Basic Death 
Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living 
adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 

On September 12, 2012, the California Governor signed the California Public Employees’ Pension 
Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) into law.  PEPRA took effect January 1, 2013. The new legislation closed 
the District’s CalPERS 2.0% at 55 Risk Pool Retirement Plan to new employee entrants, not previously 
employed by an agency under CalPERS, effective December 31, 2012. All employees hired after January 
1, 2013, are eligible for the District’s CalPERS 2.0% at 62 Retirement Plan under PEPRA. 

The District participates in the Plan’s miscellaneous risk pool. The provisions and benefits for the Plan’s 
miscellaneous pool in effect as June 30, 2018, are summarized as follows: 

New Classic PEPRA

Hire date

Prior to 
December 31, 

2012

On or after    
January 1, 

2013

Benefit formula 2.0% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age 50 - 55 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible
  compensation 2.00% 2.00%
Required employee contribution rates 7.00% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 8.92% 6.53%

5 years of service
monthly for life

Contributions 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be 
effective on July 1, following notice of a change in rate. Funding contribution for the Plan is determined 
annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30, by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated 
amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional 
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference 
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.  For the year ended June 
30, 2018, the District’s employer contributions reduced its net pension liability by $61,410. 

DRAFT
2. All e2. Al

ent Plan undent P

. The provisions and . The provisio
zed as follows: zed as follows: 

New Classicw Classic
Prior to Pr

December 31Dece
201220

2.02.0

s, as a % of eligibles, as a % of elig
onon

mployee contribution ramployee contribution ra
ployer contributionployer contributi

FTFT
AFAF

43



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

25 

(7) Defined Benefit Pension Plans, continued
Net Pension Liability 

As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate 
share of the net pension liability of the Plan as follows: 

2018

Proportionate share of net pension liability $ 562,232

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension 
liability for the miscellaneous risk pool.  As of June 30, 2018, the net pension liability of the Plan is 
measured as of June 30, 2017 (the measurement date). The total pension liability for the Plan’s 
miscellaneous risk pool used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2016 (the valuation date), rolled forward to June 30, 2017, using standard update 
procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined.  The District’s changes in proportionate share of the net 
pension liability for the Plan’s miscellaneous risk pool as of the measurement date June 30, 2017, was as 
follows:

Proportionate
Share

Proportion – June 30, 2016 0.00579          %
Proportion – June 30, 2017 0.00567          

Decrease in proportionate share 0.00012          %

DRAFT
une 30une 3

ty was basty wa
elative to the projeelative to t

t’s changes in proportit’s changes in p
of the measurement date of the measurement d

Propor

016
, 2017, 2017

portionate shareportionate share

FF

44



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

26 

(7) Defined Benefit Pension Plans, continued
Deferred Pension Outflows(Inflows) of Resources 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $104,013. As of the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pension from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of

Description Resources Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to
  measurement date $ 65,018            -                     

Differences between actual and
  expected experience -                     (7,709)

Changes in assumptions 66,306            -                     

Net differences between projected and
  actual earnings on plan investments 16,234            -                     

Adjustment due to changes in proportions
  and difference between actual and 
  proportionate share of contributions 39,642            -                     

    Total $ 187,200          (7,709)

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District’s deferred outflows of resources related to contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date totaled $65,018; and other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized as pension expense as 
follows:

Fiscal Year Deferred Net
Ending Outflows of
June 30, Resources

2019 $ 38,318            
2020 52,779            
2021 33,013            
2022 (9,637)            

DRAFT
-

66,30666,30666,30666,306     

16,234116,234

ons

tions 33

$AAAA18, the District’s de8, the District’s deferreferre
nt date totaled $65,018; ate totaled $65,018; a

ows of resources relatedows of resource

Fiscal YFis
EEDD

45



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

27 

(7) Defined Benefit Pension Plans, continued 
Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2016, actuarial valuation report was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions: 

Valuation date June 30, 2016 
Measurement date June 30, 2017 
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements 

of GASB Statement No. 68 
Actuarial assumption  
  Discount rate 7.15% 
  Inflation 2.75% 
  Salary increase Varies by Entry Age and Service 
  Mortality table* Derived using CalPERS membership data 
  Period upon which actuarial 
    experience survey  
    assumptions were based 

1997 - 2011 

Post-retirement benefit  
  increase 

Contract COLA up to 2.75% until PPPA floor on 
purchasing power applies; 2.75% thereafter. 

* The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data.  The table includes 20 years of 
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.  For more details on this table, please refer 
to the April 2014 experience study report (based on CalPERS demographic data from 1997 to 2011) 
available online. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rates used in the actuarial valuations to measure the total pension liability as of June 30, 
2017, reflect the long-term expected rates of return. The discount rates used to measure the total pension 
liability as of June 30, 2017, was 7.15%. These differ from the discount rates used as of June 30, 2016, 
which was 7.65%, due to a decrease in the long-term expected rate of return. The financial reporting 
discount rates are not adjusted for administrative expenses and are consistent with the funding discount 
rates at the end of the three-year funding discount rate phase-in period.  

To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of the discount rate, the 
amortization and smoothing periods adopted by CalPERS in 2013 were used. The crossover test was 
performed for a miscellaneous agent plan and a safety agent plan selected as being more at risk of failing 
the crossover test and resulting in a discount rate that would be different from the long-term expected rate 
of return on pension investments.  

Based on the testing of the plans, the tests revealed the assets would not run out.  Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability for the PERF C. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  

mbershimbers

up to 2.75% until PPup to 2.75% until 
wer applies; 2.75% therewer applies; 2.75% there

CalPERS specific data.  ERS spec
ries Scale BB.  For moreries Scale BB.  Fo

(based onsed on CalPERS dem CalPERS de

ctuarial valuations to mectuarial valuations to m
pected rates of return. Thted rates of return. Th

7, was 7.15%. These diff, was 7.15%. These diff
to a decrease in the longo a decrease in the

adjusted for administratiadjusted for administrat
three-year funding discthree-year funding

municipal bomunicipal bo
periods periods 

gege

46



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

28 

(7) Defined Benefit Pension Plans, continued 
Discount Rate, continued

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical 
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term 
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected 
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each 
fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived 
at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-
term returns.  The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated 
above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.  

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class.  The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 
allocation.

As of June 30, 2018, the target allocation and the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class 
were as follow:

Target Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10 Year 11+

Global Equity 47.0% 4.90% 0.54%
Global Fixed Income 19.0 0.80 2.27
Inflation Sensitive 6.0 0.60 1.39
Private Equity 12.0 6.60 6.63
Real Asset 11.0 2.80 5.21
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0 3.90 5.36
Liquidity 2.0 (0.40) (0.90)

    Total 100.0%

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following table presents the District’s proportionate share of the net position liability for the Plan, 
calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one 
percentage point higher than the current rate. 

As of June 30, 2018, the District’s net pension liability at the current discount rate, using a discount rate 
that is one-percentage point lower, and using a discount rate that is one-percentage point higher, are as 
follows:

Current
Discount Discount Discount

Rate - 1% Rate Rate + 1%
6.15% 7.15% 8.15%

District's Net Pension Liability $ 798,837          562,232          366,272          

DRAFT
rmine rmine

expected real rate oexpected rea

Target Real RetTarget Real Ret
Allocation Yearcation

47.0%47.0%
19.019.0
6.06.0
12.0
11.1AFAFFF

ionate Share ofionate Share o

the Dithe Di
tt

47



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

29 

(7) Defined Benefit Pension Plans, continued
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in separately issued 
CalPERS financial reports. See pages 32 and 33 for the Required Supplementary Schedules. 

(8) Risk Management 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is insured for a 
variety of potential exposures. The following is a summary of the insurance policies carried by the 
District as of June 30, 2018: 

Public employee dishonesty, forgery or alteration, computer fraud, faithful performance of duty, 
pension plans including ERISA: $200,000 limit of coverage with a $100,000 deductible. 

Building, personal property, fixed equipment, additional coverage, and catastrophic coverage: 
$1,000 deductible. 

Mobile equipment: $1,000 deductible. 

Automobile: $1,000 deductible. 

Boiler and machinery: Various. 

Flood: Various. 

Earthquake: 5% per unit of insurance, subject to $75,000 minimum. 

(9) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements prior to the 
issue date, that has effective dates that may impact future financial presentations. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 83 

In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83 – Certain Asset Retirement Obligations.  This 
Statement (1) addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations 
(AROs), (2) establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a 
corresponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs, (3) requires that recognition occur when the 
liability is both incurred and reasonably estimable, (4) requires the measurement of an ARO to be based 
on the best estimate of the current value of outlays expected to be incurred, (5) requires the current value 
of a government’s AROs to be adjusted for the effects of general inflation or deflation at least annually, 
and (6) requires disclosure of information about the nature of a government’s AROs, the methods and 
assumptions used for the estimates of the liabilities, and the estimated remaining useful life of the 
associated tangible capital assets.  

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. 
Earlier application is encouraged. 

DRAFT
th ath a

coverage, acove

nce, subject to $75,000 mbject to $75,000 m

g Standards Boarg Standards Boa d Sta
tandards Board (GASB)tandards Board (GASB

ates that that may impact futurmay impact futur

g Standards Board Stateg Standards Boar

he GASB issued Statemehe GASB issued Statem
ses accounting and ses accounting a

riteria for deterriteria for dete
flow of reflow of re

asonason

48



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

30 

(9) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective, 
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84 

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84 – Fiduciary Activities.  The objective of this 
Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and 
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.  

This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. 
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary 
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included 
to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary 
activities. 

This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other 
employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial 
funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent 
arrangement that meets specific criteria. 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. 
Earlier application is encouraged. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87 

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87 – Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better 
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting 
for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements 
by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as 
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment 
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational 
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is 
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to 
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and 
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. 
Earlier application is encouraged. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 88 

In April 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 88 – Certain Disclosures Related to Debt Including Direct 
Borrowings and Direct Placements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the information 
that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings 
and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing 
information related to debt. 

This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial statements as a liability that 
arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be used in lieu of cash) in one or 
more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is established. 

This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to 
financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms 
specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences, 
significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration 
clauses. 

DRAFT
apap

purposepurpo
that arthat a e not h

ng periods beginning afteng periods beginning

ment No. 87 No. 87 

87 – 87 – Leases. The objectThe
menent users by improvingt users by improvi

nt increases the usefulnesases the usefulnes
e assets and liabe assets and liabilities foilities fo

inflows of resources or oinflows of resource
ablishes a single model fablishes a single mode

ings of the right to us of the right to use anse an
e liability and an intangibe liability and a

able and a deferred inflable and a deferred
ation aboutation  governments’overnmentst

s Statement are effes Statement are e
uraged. uraged

ndarndar

49



Aromas Water District 
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

31 

(9) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective, 
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 88, continued 

For notes to financial statements related to debt, this Statement also requires that existing and additional 
information be provided for direct borrowings and direct placements of debt separately from other debt. 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. 
Earlier application is encouraged. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 89 

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89 – Accounting for Interest Cost incurred Before the End 
of a Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and 
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) 
to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. 

This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a 
construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in 
accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 5–22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting 
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements, which are superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost 
incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the 
cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a 
result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical 
cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type activity or enterprise fund. 

This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources 
measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as 
an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles. 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. 
Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements of this Statement should be applied prospectively. 

(10) Commitments and Contingencies
Grant Awards 

Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by grantor agencies. Such audit could lead to 
requests for reimbursements to grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. 
Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant. 

Litigation 

In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties. 
After consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any, 
will not materially affect its financial condition. 

(11) Subsequent Events 
Events occurring after June 30, 2018, have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial 
statements or disclosure as of November 27, 2018, which is the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. 

DRAFT
winwin

onstructonstru

est cost incurrest cost 
est that previously west that previo

Statement No. 62, Statement No. 62, Codif
Pre-November 30, 198Pre-November 30, 19

atement. Thement. This Statement is 
be recognized as an expengnized a

ed using the economic resed using the econo
of a consa construction period wtruction period

ss-type activity or enterpractivity or enterpr

financial statfinancial statements prepemen
curred before the end of curred before the end

tent withent w  governmental fugovernmental f

atement are effective for tement are effe
ouraged. The requiremenouraged. The require

ts and Contingenciests and Contingencies

DistrictDistrict
gg

50



Required Supplementary Information 

DRAFTtary Informtary Infor

51



DRAFT

52



Aromas Water District 
Schedules of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

As of June 30, 2018 
Last Ten Years* 

32

Defined Benefit Plan

6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.00567% 0.00579% 0.00635% 0.00701%

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 562,232          501,054          436,183          436,144          

District's covered-employee payroll $ 284,641          260,629          249,960          328,069          

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability
 as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 197.52% 192.25% 174.50% 132.94%

Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the plan's
  total pension liability 73.31% 74.06% 78.40% 79.82%

Description
Fiscal Years

Notes to the Schedules of the District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 
Changes in Benefit Terms – The District can make changes to their plan provisions, and such changes 
occur on an ongoing basis. A summary of the plan provisions that were used for the District’s plan can be 
found in the plan’s annual valuation report. 

Changes of Assumptions – In fiscal year 2018, the financial reporting discount rate was lowered from 
7.65% to 7.15%. In December 2016, the CalPERS Board approved lowering the funding discount rate 
used from 7.50% to 7.00%, which is to be phased-in over a three-year period (7.50% to 7.375%, 7.375% 
to 7.25%, and 7.25% to 7.00%) beginning with the June 30, 2016, valuation reports. The funding discount 
rate includes a 15 basis-point reduction for administrative expenses, and the remaining decrease is 
consistent with the change in the financial reporting discount rate. 

* The District has presented information for those years for which information is available until a full 10- 
year trend is compiled. 

DRAFTTTare of Net Peare of 
s to ths to their plan provisioplan p

ons that were used for theons that were used fo

e financial renancial reporting discp
RS Board approved lowd appr

ased-in ed-in over a three-year over a three-y
with the Juhe June 30, 2016, vane 30, 2016, vau

on for adminin for administrative exstrative ex
ncial reporting discount rancial reporting disc

rmation for those years formation for those years 

53



Aromas Water District 
Schedules of the Pension Plan Contributions 

As of June 30, 2018 
Last Ten Years* 

33

6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

Actuarially determined contribution $ 65,018            61,410            51,643            43,204            
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined 
  contribution (65,018)          (61,410)          (51,643)          (43,204)          

Contribution deficiency(excess) $ -                     -                     -                     -                     

District's covered payroll $ 284,641          260,629          249,960          328,069          

Contribution's as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 22.84% 23.56% 20.66% 13.17%

Description
Fiscal Years

Notes to the Schedules of Pension Plan Contributions 
* The District has presented information for those years for which information is available until a full 10-
year trend is compiled. 

DRAFT
rmatrma

54



Supplementary Information 

DRAFTInformationInformatio

55



DRAFT

56



Aromas Water District 
Schedules of Operating Expenses 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
With comparative amounts for June 30, 2017 

34 

2018 2017

Operating expenses:
Salaries $ 400,774          392,695          
Payroll taxes 32,989            32,185            
Retirement benefits - CalPERS 104,042          10,548            
Uniform allowance 1,166              1,121              
Education 4,385              5,256              
Workers compensation and health insurance 82,063            80,755            
Outside services 5,708              5,811              
Power 74,324            54,034            
Truck expense 12,736            11,302            
System repair and maintenance 52,189            61,323            
Water analysis and treatment 16,029            15,829            
Small tools and equipment 6,136              7,295              
Annexation/EIR/Planning 1,154              1,845              
Office (postage/supplies/maintenance) 16,964            14,001            
Telemetry 3,587              3,594              
Telephone 6,725              7,167              
Election expense -                     400                 
General and property insurance 2,375              16,355            
Legal 15,600            15,000            
Bank charges 1,053              1,774              
Audit 12,200            12,350            
Bad debts 70                   1,151              
Membership 16,353            15,077            

Total operating expenses $ 868,622          766,868          DRAFT
            

52,1                 
16,029                 

6,1366,                 
1,151,15              

16            
       
 

g expensesg expe

57



< Page Intentionally Left Blank >

DRAFTeft Blank >eft Bl

58



Report on Internal Controls and Compliance

DRAFTrols and Corols and C

59



DRAFT

60



35

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting 
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on the Audit of Financial Statements  

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
Board of Directors 
Aromas Water District 
Aromas, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Aromas Water 
District (District), as of and for the year June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated November 27, 2018. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

DDDRAFTT
y ac

T
d in G

Tancial 

FThe related not

FTtatements, and hav

AFnan emen

AFl) to determine the au

RAFour opinion on th

RAe effectiveness of Di

RActiveness e Di

RAl exists when the desl

DRA
normal course of 

DRments on a time

DRnal control, such that t

DRal statements will not beDs a deficiency, oDweakness, yeD

61



36

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting 
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, (continued)

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Fedak & Brown LLP 
Cypress, California 
November 27, 2018 

DRAFT

62



Staff Report 
To:  Board of Directors 

Re: Item IX.B – Consider receiving: 1) an informational presentation from XiO 
Systems, and 2) an updated proposal regarding the purchase of XiO Systems 
hardware for Aromas Water District sites, in the amount of $13,139.00, and 
providing direction to Staff. 

Date:  November 20, 2018 

Summary / Discussion 
The Aromas Water District (District) utilizes a system control architecture called SCADA (Supervisory 
Control And Data Acquisition) that uses computers, networked data communications and graphical user 
interfaces for managing the District’s water system.  An operator can control the whole water system through 
the use of the SCADA system.   
 
XiO Systems will be providing an informational presentation about what they do and their hardware and 
software.  After which, the Board of Directors (BOD) will hear about a new proposal from XiO for the 
Pleasant Acres Well and Pine Tree Tank.  In September, the BOD approved moving forward with the purchase 
and implementation of XiO equipment at the Rancho Larios Tank and the Pleasant Acres Well for monitoring 
and control.  Subsequently, an error was found in that proposal, and the resolution to that issue was to break 
proposal one into two proposals; 1) the outfitting of the Rancho Larios Tank (approved at the October BOD 
meeting), and 2) the outfitting of the Pleasant Acres Well.  The latter needs more equipment than the original 
proposal, which is described in the document attached to this report.  Basically, Pleasant Acres Well is 
controlled by the levels at Pine Tree Tank, and not by pressure only, which is how the first proposal was 
configured; therefore monitoring and control of Pine Tree Tank needed to be added. 
 
The cost is $13,139.00 for hardware and programming, and the cloud-based monitoring and control services 
will cost $148 per month.  There may be some variations to these costs, depending on some site-specific issues 
that still need to be worked out in the field.     
 
This proposal allows the District to take advantage of XiO Systems unique approach to system control, and 
solve two pressing issues, with nominal capital commitment. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Receive the report, authorize the General Manager to accept the XiO proposal and move forward with 
outfitting the proposed two sites. 
 
Submitted by: 
Robert Johnson 
General Manager  

63



A Proposal for an XiO Cloud SCADA® Water Control System for 
Aromas Water District Phase 2 Phase 2 Water System 

Version 1.0 
November 16, 2018 

We Know Water

64



Version 1.0 Aromas Water District Phase 2 Water System

Proposed System 
XiO, Inc. (XiO) is pleased to supply this proposal to provide a monitoring and control system for Aromas Water 
District Phase 2 Water System. 

The purpose of this proposed system is to: 

• Provide a secure website where all water operations may be viewed, and up-to-the-minute equipment status 
clearly displayed. 

• Provide a secure method for authorized operators to put pumps online or offline and modify setpoints. 
• Provide an advanced alarm system that will notify personnel via text or e-mail when user-defined events 

occur (e.g. low system pressure, pump fails to start, etc.). 

Pleasant Acres Well 
• Monitor and control the Pleasant Acres Well Pump based on a user defined level in the Pine Tree  Tank. 
• Monitor and report the electrical energy used by Pleasant Acres Well Pump. 
• Provide signal isolation to monitor and report the aquifer level utilizing a customer-supplied submersible 

water level management sensor. 
• Monitor and report the volume of the sodium hypochlorite tank utilizing an XiO-supplied chemical drum 

volume sensor. 
• Monitor and report the flow rate and total flow through the system utilizing the existing flow meter.  This 

requires that the meter be equipped with a pulse output. 
• Provide signal isolation to monitor and report the system pressure utilizing a customer-supplied external 

water pressure sensor. 

Pine Tree Tank 
• Provide signal isolation to monitor and report the level of the Pine Tree Tank utilizing a customer-supplied 

submersible water level management sensor. 

Confidential Document XiO, Inc. Page �  of �2 14

65



Version 1.0 Aromas Water District Phase 2 Water System

System Diagrams 

Confidential Document XiO, Inc. Page �  of �3 14

66



Version 1.0 Aromas Water District Phase 2 Water System

Description of the System 
The proposed system consists of two locations.  The Pleasant Acres Well operates based on the level of the 
Pine Tree Tank. An XiO-Supplied cellular modem at the each location will provide a connection to the XiO 
Cloud Servers for remote monitoring and control.  

Alarms 
The XiO system can alarm on any value that is monitored via an email or SMS text notification to a list of 
authorized operators.  Examples of these alarm conditions are: 

• No communication with the site 
• Pump fails to start 
• High / Low Tank Level 

Verizon Modem 
The XiO Cloud SCADA control system requires a minimum of one connection to the Internet.  XiO supplies a 
rugged NEMA4X enclosure with a Verizon modem that connects to the Verizon network.  Like all parts of the 
XiO control system, the modem is shipped to site ready for an electrician to mount, apply 120VAC and power 
up.  The system automatically connects to the Internet and XiO is informed of the event and can assist in 
system start-up.   

Report Generator 
Included at no additional cost is a comprehensive report generation system that can produce monthly reports 
downloadable in Excel format containing required fields, employing any data collected such as pressure levels, 
pump hours, water pumped, electricity used, cost to pump water—all listed by month, day, hour, minute.  The 
data is organized and can be viewed by any authorized operator on the secure XiO website. 

Cloud Based Management 
The XiO system will be monitored and managed through an account on XiO’s secure cloud servers.  The 
password protected account will provide managers with the following: 
• System Overview - Process diagram showing the current state of the system (i.e. tank levels, status of pumps, 

etc.). 
• Levels - Line graphs showing the levels of all monitored parameters. 
• Reports - Downloadable reports showing water pumped (gallons), energy used by pumps (kWh), efficiency 

of pumps (kWh/1000gallons), and pump runtime (hours). 
• Alarms - View of all alarms that have been triggered. 
• Schedule - Page allowing the user to adjust the set points that affect when the pumps will run. 

Confidential Document XiO, Inc. Page �  of �4 14

67



Version 1.0 Aromas Water District Phase 2 Water System

Features to be Delivered 
Qty Item Description

Pleasant Acres Well

1 Well Controller without 
Submersible Water Level Sensor

Well Controller provides up-to-the-minute views of well 
operation.  Monitors well pump.  Provides reports on electrical 
energy used by well pump, water production reports and pump 
efficiency reports.  Advanced correlation alarms notify users of 
low flows and pump failures.  Historical pump runtimes are 
included in the package.  Provides flow rates and total flow 
from the well. 
*water production reports and flow require a water meter to be 
connected. 

Pricing includes: 
• One FIU 
• RMS electrical current sensor with 10 feet of shielded 600V 
cable, approved for use inside electrical enclosures. 
• Inputs to monitor a water meter

2 Analog Signal Isolation Isolated inputs provide galvanic isolation to monitor any 
externally powered signal or signals that are shared with 
another device or system.  The XiO Cloud SCADA® Control 
System provides up-to-the-minute views of isolated inputs 
monitored. 

Pricing includes: 
• Galvanic Signal Isolation Module to Isolate non-loop powered 
4-20mA signals.

1 Chemical Drum Volume 
Monitoring

Monitors chemical drum level.  Provides the XiO Cloud SCADA® 
system with the ability to monitor drum level and allows users to 
receive alarms indicating a low drum level.  This is a crucial 
feature in water treatment facilities, ensures operators are 
always aware of the chemical drum level. 

Pricing includes: 
• Drum level sensor with 20 feet of water-tight, connectorized, 
low-loss, shielded cable for easy installation.

1 Cloud-Link Cellular Modem 
Package

Provides secure access to the XiO Cloud SCADA® servers.  
Housed in a NEMA-4X enclosure.

Confidential Document XiO, Inc. Page �  of �5 14

68



Version 1.0 Aromas Water District Phase 2 Water System

Pine Tree Tank

1 Custom Controller The custom controller is pre-configured for up to a total of 12 
inputs and outputs.  All inputs and outputs provided by the 
custom controller are managed on the secure cloud server and 
provide up-to-the-minute-views of system operation. 

Pricing includes: 
• Pre-configured FIU

1 Analog Signal Isolation Isolated inputs provide galvanic isolation to monitor any 
externally powered signal or signals that are shared with 
another device or system.  The XiO Cloud SCADA® Control 
System provides up-to-the-minute views of isolated inputs 
monitored. 

Pricing includes: 
• Galvanic Signal Isolation Module to Isolate non-loop powered 
4-20mA signals.

1 Cloud-Link Cellular Modem 
Package

Provides secure access to the XiO Cloud SCADA® servers.  
Housed in a NEMA-4X enclosure.

Qty Item Description

Confidential Document XiO, Inc. Page �  of �6 14

69



Version 1.0 Aromas Water District Phase 2 Water System

System Installation 
XiO does not act as a contractor and does not install the equipment.  XiO recommends that the Proposed 
Control System be installed by a licensed electrician and a water operator.  The XiO hardware requires a single 
120VAC circuit, fused at 15 amps or less. An individual Field Installable Unit (FIU) draws 3.7 watts, while the 
supplied cellular modem draws 6 watts. A solid earth ground must be provided, as required by code, but no 
special precautions need be taken. All connections are clearly marked with UL-recognized label materials. All 
enclosures are non-metallic rated NEMA4X, and XiO recommends employing water tight conduit especially in 
near-marine environments. 

The customer is responsible for providing a suitable mounting location for the FIU(s) and other XiO-supplied 
hardware.  There are several considerations when selecting a suitable mounting location for the FIU, 
Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) or other XiO supplied hardware: 

Temperature- As with all electronics, extreme temperatures, especially heat, can affect the proper operation of 
the XiO Control System.  It is important to consider sources of heat when selecting a suitable mounting 
location for the FIU. 

• Keep the FIU out of direct sunlight 
• Do not mount the FIU on a South-facing wall or panel 
• Consider constructing a cover to provide shade for the FIU 
• Avoid mounting the FIU on a surface that may become hot such as an outdoor metal panel. 
• Be sure the Soft-I/O Module is properly seated in its bracket 

Environment- Components of the XiO Cloud SCADA® Control System are housed in NEMA-4X enclosures that 
protect them from many environmental conditions such as rain, solid objects, dust, and some corrosive agents. 

• Take additional steps to avoid harsh environmental conditions if possible 
• This includes potentially dangerous gasses produced by wastewater 
• Be sure to provide a water-tight seal on any enclosure penetrations 

Delivery 
The preconfigured system will be shipped from XiO 4—6 weeks after receipt of a purchase order. 

Quoted Price 
The total cost of the system is $13,139 (not including tax or actual UPS ground shipping costs).  This price 
includes all XiO-supplied hardware as listed above and all programming. 

Recurring Monthly Service Fees 
The cloud service fee is $39/month per Controller (if applicable) and includes all programming, ongoing 
support, alarms, report generation, unlimited access to the secure website and an extended warranty on the 
FIU control module--Soft-I/O®--as long as the Cloud service fee is kept current.  The warranty referenced in this 
paragraph is attached to this document.  This paragraph specifically modifies the warranty in the favor of the 
customer.  The cloud secure cellular access charge, including Internet, is $35/month per modem (if applicable).  
The fee of $41/month per Field Monitoring Unit (if applicable) includes secure cellular cloud access as well as 
all programming, ongoing support, alarms, report generation, and unlimited access to the secure website. 

Confidential Document XiO, Inc. Page �  of �7 14

70



Version 1.0 Aromas Water District Phase 2 Water System

Payment of Recurring Monthly Service Fees 
When the system has been installed, the customer will receive notice regarding payment for the recurring 
service fees.  A check will be required for the first 90 days of service.  Subsequent payments will be made 
through an automatic payment process. 

Item Monthly Fee/Unit Qty Subtotal

Controller (FIU) $39 2 $78

Cellular Modem with internet $35 2 $70

Field Monitoring Unit (FMU) $41 0 $0

Total Monthly Fees $148

Confidential Document XiO, Inc. Page �  of �8 14

71



Version 1.0 Aromas Water District Phase 2 Water System

Terms 
This proposal is valid until September 29, 2018.  XiO will invoice upon shipment, and payment is due 60 days 
from invoice date.   

Terms and Conditions of Sale 
The following Terms & Conditions of Sale are included in this proposal. 

Hardware Acceptance:

Print Name

Signature

Email

Hardware Bill To: Hardware Ship To:

Cloud Fees Acceptance:

Print Name

Signature

Email

Cloud Fees Bill To:

Confidential Document XiO, Inc. Page �  of �9 14

72



Version 1.0 Aromas Water District Phase 2 Water System

Terms and Conditions
The following Terms and Conditions are incorporated in and are a part of the Purchase 
Agreement. Where the Product in question is a software product, it is understood that 
Customer receives only a license to use such product on the terms stated herein. XiO, Inc. 
("XiO") retains title to said product. 

1. Price; Payment Terms
 A. Prices for all products (hardware and software) will be the price agreed upon in XiO's 

acknowledgment of Customer's order or at the time of online order placement.  
 B. XiO shall provide written acknowledgment of all non-online orders showing price, 

anticipated delivery date and payment terms. For online orders, Customer is provided with 
these Terms and Conditions, price, anticipated delivery date and payment terms. As a 
result, no written acknowledgment is provided for online orders.  

 C. Prices are exclusive of all federal, state, municipal or other government, excise, sales, use, 
occupational, or like taxes or duties now in force or enacted in the future. Any such tax, 
fee, or charge of any nature whatsoever imposed by any governmental authority on, or 
measured by, the transaction (including the shipment of goods) between XiO and 
Customer shall be paid by Customer in addition to the prices quoted or invoiced. In the 
event XiO is required to pay any such tax, fee, or charge at the time of sale or thereafter, 
Customer shall reimburse XiO therefore.  

 D. Payments shall be made by Customer in accordance with payment terms stated by XiO in 
written acknowledgment of order, or in an online description for online orders. Amounts not 
timely paid shall bear interest at the rate of 1-1/2% for each month or portion thereof that 
payment is late.  

2. Delivery
 A. Delivery will be F.O.B. XiO's plant and shall occur on the date of turnover to a common 

carrier unless, at Customer's option, Product is picked up at the F.O.B. point by Customer.  
 B. Title and risk of loss for Products shall pass to Customer on delivery F.O.B. XiO's plant. 

Customer shall then be responsible for and bear the entire risk of loss or damage to 
Products. Unless otherwise instructed, by Customer, XiO shall insure each product during 
shipment for Customer' account and will add the cost of such insurance to Customer' 
invoice.  

 C. Shipment will be scheduled to be made on the date specified on Customer's written 
purchase order or on the date agreed upon by both parties and specified on the written 
acknowledgment of XiO, whichever is later, or--in the case of online orders-- based upon 
the online-stated scheduled date. This date is the scheduled shipment date. XiO reserves 
the right to extend this date by not more than sixty (60) days upon notification of 
Customer. If shipment is delayed by XiO more than sixty (60) days, Customer may 
terminate this Agreement and receive a refund of all money paid hereunder.

Confidential Document XiO, Inc. Page �  of �10 14

73



Version 1.0 Aromas Water District Phase 2 Water System

3. Change Orders
Any written request from Customer for a change in the order acknowledged by XiO may 
subject Customer to a price change reflecting XiO's increased or decreased direct costs or 
an extension of the scheduled shipment date, or both, depending on the change 
requested. Written acknowledgment by XiO of a change order will specify and confirm any 
price or delivery impact.

4. Shipment
In the absence of specific shipping instructions from Customer, XiO will ship by the method 
it deems most advantageous to both parties. Transportation charges may be prepaid and 
will be subsequently invoiced to Customer. Unless otherwise specified, products shall be 
shipped in XiO's standard commercial packaging. When special packaging is requested or, 
in the opinion of XiO, required under the circumstances, the cost of the same will be 
separately invoiced. If Customer specifies the shipment method on the purchase order, 
and XiO uses a different method, then XiO shall be liable for the difference, if any, between 
the cost of freight incurred and the cost of freight which would have been incurred had XiO 
complied with Customer' shipping instructions.

5. Cancellations
XiO shall have the right to cancel the order and recover possession of and title to a product 
(if such have passed to Customer) under any of the following circumstances: Customer 
fails to perform its obligations under any of the material Terms and Conditions hereunder; 
or Customer's delay directly causes material delay to XiO's performance; or any 
bankruptcy, arrangement or insolvency proceedings are commenced by or against 
Customer; or in the event of the appointment of any assignee for the benefit of creditors or 
of a receiver of Customer or its properties. No such termination shall prejudice any of the 
rights of XiO arising prior to such termination or shall limit in any way other remedies 
available to XiO. Customer shall have no right to cancel the purchase of any product after 
shipment from XiO. Orders for standard products that are canceled within fifteen (15) days 
prior to the scheduled shipment date from XiO shall be subject to a cancellation charge 
equal to twenty percent (20%) of the total purchase price. Orders for custom products are 
not cancelable after order acknowledgment.

6. Warranty
Hardware products and software media are warranted against defects in materials and 
workmanship for a period of one year from the date of shipment. During the
warranty period, XiO will, at its option, either repair or replace (but not install) product or 
software media which proves to be defective. The Product or media must be returned to 
XiO for warranty service or repair. Customer shall prepay shipping charges to XiO and XiO 
shall ship to Customer in accordance with Section 4 of this Agreement, except that 
shipment by surface transportation to Customer, within the U.S. only, shall be at XiO's 
expense. XiO warrants that software products will conform to published specifications and 
will operate properly for one year from the date of shipment. XiO will correct material 
defects in software products during the warranty period by issuing converted versions of 
software products.

Confidential Document XiO, Inc. Page �  of �11 14

74



Version 1.0 Aromas Water District Phase 2 Water System

7. Limitations and Disclaimers of Warranties
Certain products are factory sealed and carry a label stating "warranty void if this seal is 
broken". In such a case, the foregoing warranty shall not apply if the product seal has been 
broken or the enclosure has been opened. The foregoing warranties shall not apply to 
defects resulting from improper connection, improper interfacing, misuse, or operation 
outside the specified environment.
THE FOREGOING WARRANTIES ARE IN LIEU OF ANY OTHER WARRANTY, EXPRESSED 
OR IMPLIED. XIO SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. THERE ARE NO 
WARRANTIES WHICH EXTEND BEYOND THE DESCRIPTION CONTAINED HEREIN.

8. Waiver of Certain Damages and Limit of Liability
XIO WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, HOWEVER CAUSED, OR ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, 
NOR WILL XIO BE LIABLE FOR LOSS, DAMAGE OR EXPENSE WHICH DIRECTLY OR 
INDIRECTLY ARISES FROM CUSTOMER' USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE PRODUCT 
EITHER SEPARATELY OR IN COMBINATION WITH OTHER EQUIPMENT [EXCEPT FOR 
DAMAGE TO PERSON OR TANGIBLE PROPERTY], OR FOR COMMERCIAL LOSS OF 
ANY KIND, OR FOR PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS, WHETHER OR NOT XIO 
HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE OR LOSS. IN NO EVENT 
SHALL XIO'S LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT EXCEED THE AMOUNT 
PAID TO XIO BY CUSTOMER FOR THE PURCHASE OF THE PRODUCT GIVING RISE TO 
SUCH LIABILITY. THIS LIMITATION IS INTENDED TO LIMIT THE LIABILITY OF XIO AND 
SHALL APPLY NOTWITHSTANDING ANY FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF ANY 
LIMITED REMEDY.

9. Security Interest
Customer hereby grants to XiO a security interest in each product, to secure payment of 
the purchase price. XiO shall have the rights of a secured party under the Uniform 
Commercial Code in effect in the state where the premises at which the product is installed 
are located, including the right to retake possession of, or inhibit the use of product on any 
default by Customer. XiO's security interest shall expire upon the payment to XiO of the full 
purchase price. Customer agrees to execute such other documents as XiO shall 
reasonably require to perfect XiO's security interest.

10. Patent and Copyright Indemnity
 A. XiO will defend at its expense any action brought against Customer to the extent based 

upon the claim that a product constitutes direct infringement of any duly issued United 
States patent or copyright and shall pay any settlements or judgments to the extent based 
thereon, provided XiO shall have sole control of any such action or settlement negotiations, 
provided further that Customer notifies XiO promptly in writing of such claim, suit or 
proceeding and, at XiO's expense (except the value of time of Customer' employees), 
gives XiO adequate information and uses its best efforts to settle and/or defend any such 
claim, suit or proceeding.  

Confidential Document XiO, Inc. Page �  of �12 14

75



Version 1.0 Aromas Water District Phase 2 Water System

 B. If a product becomes, or in the opinion or XiO may become, subject to any claim of 
infringement for any United States patent or copyright, XiO may, at its option: (i) procure for 
Customer the right to use or sell the product; (ii) replace or modify the product, or part 
thereof; or (iii) remove the product, or part thereof, and refund the aggregate payments 
paid therefor to XiO less a reasonable sum for use and damage. XiO shall not be liable for 
any costs or expenses incurred without its prior written authorization.  

 C. XiO assumes no liability for (i) infringement of patent or copyright claims resulting from 
completed products of Customer into which a product is incorporated; (ii) any assembly, 
circuit, combination, method or process of Customer in which any product may be used; 
(iii) any compliance with Customer' specifications; or (iv) the modification of a product, or 
any part thereof, unless such modification was made by XiO or with the written approval of 
XiO.  

 D. THE FOREGOING STATES THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE LIABILITY OF XIO, AND THE 
EXCLUSIVE REMEDY OF CUSTOMER, FOR PATENT, COPYRIGHT AND OTHER 
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS INFRINGEMENT OR CLAIMS OF INFRINGEMENT.  

11. Substitutions and Modifications
XiO reserves the right to make substitutions and modifications in the specifications of 
products designed by XiO providing that such substitutions or modifications will not 
materially negatively affect performance in the intended application, and that upon written 
request, XiO will provide a brief explanation of the change.

12. Entire Agreement
The Purchase Agreement and Terms and Conditions as set forth herein shall govern and 
constitute the entire agreement between XiO and Customer. XiO shall not be bound by any 
terms of Customer' order which are inconsistent with or additional to the Terms and 
Conditions herein set forth.

13. Software Products Restriction
Products delivered to Customer pursuant to these Terms and Conditions may embody and 
include certain software programs in object code (machine-readable but not human-
readable form). In some cases, the only product delivered will be a software product. The 
software may be contained on disk drives or CD’s, erasable programmable read-only 
memories (EPROMS), non-volatile random access memories (NVRAM), electrically 
erasable programmable read-only memories (EEPROMS or flash memory), programmable 
array logic devices (PALS or FPGAS), disk cartridges, may be embodied in Application 
Specific Integrated Circuits (ASIC’s) or in other electronic or mechanical forms. Such 
software constitutes either the copyrighted property of XiO or the proprietary trade secret 
information of XiO, or both, and shall be held in confidence by Customer. XiO retains title to 
the software (excluding media on which recorded) and all intellectual property rights, and 
no title to software or intellectual property rights is transferred to Customer. Unless 
Customer is granted greater rights by written amendment to these Terms and Conditions 
executed by XiO, Customer is hereby granted a personal, non- transferable, non-exclusive 
perpetual license to use only the number of copies of the software which are provided by 

Confidential Document XiO, Inc. Page �  of �13 14

76



Version 1.0 Aromas Water District Phase 2 Water System

XiO, and to use such copies only on (i) the hardware on which it is originally mounted by 
XiO, or (ii) on a single hardware product identified by Customer in its purchase order and 
confirmed by XiO in its order acknowledgment. Without XiO's prior written consent, 
Customer may not copy the software for any purpose, nor may Customer remove the 
software or attempt to execute the software on any hardware other than the authorized 
hardware. Customer shall not, whether through use of disassemblers or any other means 
whatsoever (including but not limited to manual, mechanical or electrical means), reverse 
engineer, decompile, disassemble or derive source code from the software, or attempt to 
or permit any third party to do any of the foregoing, including causing the software to be 
destroyed or disabled. Any attempt to do any of these things shall be material breach of 
these Terms and Conditions which shall immediately entitle XiO to exercise any remedies 
set forth herein, as well as any remedy that may exist at law or in equity. The provisions of 
this Section 13 shall survive this Agreement in perpetuity.

14. Conditions of Operation
THE PRODUCTS PROVIDED BY XIO ARE INTENDED TO BE USED ONLY WHEN 
SUPPLEMENTAL PROTECTION IS PROVIDED TO PREVENT DAMAGE TO CUSTOMER' 
PROPERTY OR INJURY TO PERSONNEL. BECAUSE OF THE HIGH COMPLEXITY OF A 
COMPUTER-CONTROLLED MACHINE CONTROL OR INPUT/OUTPUT SYSTEM, 
UNINTENDED MOTION AND ACTIONS CAN OCCUR. CUSTOMER ACCEPTS ALL 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTEGRATING XIO PRODUCTS INTO MECHANISMS OR 
PROCESSES. LIMIT SWITCHES MUST BE A PART OF A MACHINE CONTROL OR 
INPUT/OUTPUT SYSTEM. OPERATOR GUARDS AND OTHER PROTECTION FOR 
OPERATORS MUST UNILATERALLY ACT TO PROTECT PERSONNEL AND PROPERTY. 
CUSTOMER ACCEPTS ALL RESPONSIBILITY FOR INSURING THAT MECHANISMS OR 
PROCESSES OF WHICH XIO PRODUCTS ARE A PART COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE 
SAFETY AND HEALTH STANDARDS, MUNICIPAL CODES, AND ANY SIMILAR 
REQUIREMENTS.

Confidential Document XiO, Inc. Page �  of �14 14

77



Staff Report 
To:  Board of Directors 

Re: Item IX.C – Consider receiving an update on the annexation of one parcel in 
the Rancho Larios area into the Aromas Water District boundary. 

Date:  November 20, 2018 

 
Summary / Discussion 
A request for water service has been made by Mr. Patrick Eilert, APN #012-014-019, who resides within 
the Rancho Larios subdivision, though his parcel is not a part of the Rancho Larios development.  Due to 
this unique situation, his parcel was not included in the agreement to deliver water to the Rancho Larios 
development.  He does have a well on his property, which, through the use of tanks has been sufficient for 
his needs over the years.  Recently though, the well’s yield has gone down (from 3 gallons per minute to 1 
gallon per minute); therefore, for health and safety reasons, Mr. Eilert is looking to be served by the 
Aromas Water District (District). 
 
The District Board of Directors (BOD) approved the initiation of the annexation process at their 
September meeting.  This is an update of the progress within the process. 
 
The Pajaro Valley Water Management Agency (PVWMA) BOD met on October 17, 2018, and approved 
the request for an exemption from Ordinances 98-01 and 98-02, allowing water to be exported out of the 
Pajaro Basin for health and safety reasons. 
 
The next step will be a presentation to the Local Area Foundation Commission (LAFCO) for specific 
actions and tasks to be completed.  Attached to this report is a listing of the filing requirements for 
submitting boundary change applications to LAFCO.  This list is not one that can be filled out quickly, 
given current staff resources, so this effort may get referred to a consultant to complete; with costs borne 
by the Mr. Eilert.  Once a completed application gets to LAFCO, there is a minimum two-month wait 
before the item will make it on their agenda.  
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
Robert Johnson 
General Manager 
 

78



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 2301 Technology Parkway
SAN BEN ITO COUNTY I-bluster, CA 95023

Phone: (831) 637-5313

FILING REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBMITTING
BOUNDARY CHANGE APPLICATIONS

An application submitted to the San Benito Local Agency Formation Commission should
Contain the following Components:

1. Cover letter listing the materials being submitted (1 copy)

2. Either a Resolution of Application or a signed Petition (1 copy)

3. Completed Proposal Questionnaire (5 copies)

4. Assessor Parcel Map with application area outlined in color (1 copy)

5. Map and legal description (5 copies)

6. _____ Certified EIR or Negative Declaration (9 Copies) or
Notice of Determination or Notice of Exemption (1 copy) or
Environmental Questionnaire if LAFCO is to be the lead agency
(1 copy)

7. _____ (EIRs & NDs) Verification Fish and Game Fees have been paid
(1 copy)

8. _____ List of current and any known future landowners or lessees for any
boundary change related to land use development projects (1 copy)

9. LAFCO Processing fee (in accordance with LAFCO fee schedule)

10. _____ Pertinent reports, studies and other information to assist the LAFCO
staff and Commission in understanding the application. (1 copy)

Filing requirements for boundary changes as of November 18, 201379



Staff Report 
To:  Board of Directors 

Re: Item IX.D – Consider receiving a report regarding the possible annexation of 
parcels along Cole Road, and providing direction to Staff 

Date:  November 20, 2018 

Summary / Discussion 
A request for water service has been made by Mr. Seth Capron and Ms. Jane Rekedal; Mr. Glenn Skogen 
and Ms. Lynn Mello; and Mr. and Mrs. Brian Ford.  These individuals own parcels 011-016-033, 011-
016-034, and 011-016-032 respectively.  Each of these properties is just less than five acres each, and 
each property has a well from which they historically have used to get water. 
 
Recently though, the respective wells have not been yielding sufficiently for the respective owners’ basic 
needs; therefore, for health and safety reasons, the owners of these three parcels are looking into being 
served by the Aromas Water District (District) (see letters attached to this report).  These three parcels are 
currently within the District’s sphere of influence, though none are annexed into the District; the boundary 
of the annexed area is Cole Road in this area (see map attached to this report). 
 
Since these parcels are not annexed into the District, the Board of Directors (BOD) could take the action 
of initiating the annexation process for these parcels.  If that is the direction the BOD chooses to take, and 
approves of this request moving forward, then the process would involve going to the Pajaro Valley 
Water Management Agency (PVWMA) BOD, and the Local Area Foundation Commission (LAFCO) for 
specific actions and tasks to be completed.  The entire process is the same, though slightly different than 
the Eilert Annexation.  As with the Eilert Annexation, costs related to completing this process would be 
borne by the applicants. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Receive the report and direct staff to go through the annexation process with PVWMA and LAFCO, 
keeping the BOD apprised of the progress. 
 
 
Submitted by: 
Robert Johnson 
General Manager  

80



81



82



83



p/,a< \c~)ç (3) P
~j? ~ ~ s

3 ~t. — — 0~Ivt~

0

~~ ~~ ~ ~ ~
~‘. ~-‘ ~b ~e CM , (SN fl

o:o’~~) .0 0) (j~o
~ ‘-~$. \, ° i’)~’ s~J\~0~

30891 b (‘~?‘

z -~ a, ~, ‘J*”c~
C °‘G
~. e~ -b !~_~i-O ~ vi~?

P~ W~~-~’~’ -v-- o~-tj~
~, 4’ ~ ~t% Is’ -‘

/ . I?’ -~

~ q p
4 ~e-__~ ~ ~cl~ ~ ~ ~

O1p—~ ~. C” C)

~ 0) II’ 01
0 --s... too,

r
52008 ~ Ui

-4 .:~ 5~’e N

6 1 ~

~ /~0

/ ~cv)
________ 9O~
~L90 — 86&41 / ~ —

2

/

84



Oct 31, 18 Oct 31, 17

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
UB Checking 89,610.12 70,710.49
UB Bk Money Market xxxx7853 192,661.71 132,226.69
LAIF-State of Ca xx-05 800,836.85 786,812.05
Petty Cash 100.00 100.00
Assessment District Banks

OAWA Union Bank Checking 7741 21,153.97 21,282.54
OAWA Union Bank 101 Redemption 4.56 9,901.87
OAWA Union Bank 102 Reserve 35,637.78 35,549.40
Oakridge Union Checking 5587 299,617.88 373,804.39
CFD Union Bank CFD98-1 50.00 10,361.54
CFD 02 Provident T Fund Reserve 0.00 -59.62

Total Assessment District Banks 356,464.19 450,840.12

Total Checking/Savings 1,439,672.87 1,440,689.35

Accounts Receivable
1200 · Accounts Receivable - Other 980.00 0.00

Total Accounts Receivable 980.00 0.00

Other Current Assets
1292 · Accounts Rec - USDA Loan 2,329,859.60 2,329,859.60
1291 · Accounts Rec - Orchard Acres 339,708.47 339,708.47
Prepaid Insurance 22,842.28 19,638.26
128 · Inventory 22,913.50 23,913.50
1200.1 · Accounts Receivable--UBMax 162,562.82 130,734.73
1201.9 · Less Allowance for doubtful ... -500.00 -500.00

Total Other Current Assets 2,877,386.67 2,843,354.56

Total Current Assets 4,318,039.54 4,284,043.91

Fixed Assets
1900 · Water System 11,735,715.85 11,645,613.45
1915 · Office Building & Improvements 387,260.80 387,260.80
1970 · Office Equipment & Fixtures 102,915.30 93,467.05
1980 · District Vehicles 117,577.39 75,349.31
1990 · Land and Easements 330,195.78 330,195.78
1995 · Idle Assets 43,400.00 43,400.00
1998 · Less Accum Depr Idle Assets -42,400.00 -42,400.00
1999 · Less Accumuated Depreciation -5,507,694.00 -5,054,460.75

Total Fixed Assets 7,166,971.12 7,478,425.64

Other Assets
Deferred Outflow of Resources 174,771.00 174,771.00
Deposits

ACWA Deposit 2,080.80 2,080.80

Total Deposits 2,080.80 2,080.80

Total Other Assets 176,851.80 176,851.80

TOTAL ASSETS 11,661,862.46 11,939,321.35

1:16 PM Aromas Water District
11/19/18 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis As of October 31, 2018

85



Oct 31, 18 Oct 31, 17

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 · Accounts Payable 18,822.29 89,189.95

Total Accounts Payable 18,822.29 89,189.95

Credit Cards
First Bankcard - E Giron #86 189.19 0.00
First Bankcard - R. Johnson #31 162.97 -420.00
ACE Hardware 39.85 39.85
First Bankcard - L Coombes #92 141.45 -11.99
First Bankcard -- T. Zelmar #67 0.00 273.64
Valero - Fuel 438.30 424.28
First Bankcard -- D DeAlba #35 424.84 298.42
First Bankcard --  #24 (VM) 0.00 92.24

Total Credit Cards 1,396.60 696.44

Other Current Liabilities
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 165.65 -24.60
City National Bank - Current 111,781.03 105,477.00
Deferred Inflows- Actuarial 17,463.00 17,463.00
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

Connection Deposits Payable 4,000.00 4,000.00
Hydrant Meter Deposit 3,200.00 150.00

Total CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 7,200.00 4,150.00

Accrued Vacation Payable 19,106.97 22,769.14
Interest Payable 52,480.90 52,480.90
PVWMA Payable 18,180.56 14,071.18

Total Other Current Liabilities 226,378.11 216,386.62

Total Current Liabilities 246,597.00 306,273.01

Long Term Liabilities
2590 · Unearned Revenue - CFD 98-1 5,545.71 13,436.52
2392 · Long-term Debt - USDA (Oakr... 2,629,000.00 2,693,000.00
2391 · Long-term Debt - Orchard Acres 400,000.00 420,000.00
GASB 68 Pension Liability 501,054.00 501,054.00
City National Bank 1,041,901.30 1,158,375.84

Total Long Term Liabilities 4,577,501.01 4,785,866.36

Total Liabilities 4,824,098.01 5,092,139.37

Equity
Investment in Capital Assets 6,420,006.53 6,420,006.53
Unrestricted Net Assets 2,999,665.90 3,019,748.84
Allocation of Net Assets -2,637,407.62 -2,637,407.62
Net Income 55,499.64 44,834.23

Total Equity 6,837,764.45 6,847,181.98

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 11,661,862.46 11,939,321.35

1:16 PM Aromas Water District
11/19/18 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis As of October 31, 2018

86



Oct 18 Budget Jul - Oct 18 YTD Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

303 · Water Revenue 116,612.65 100,000.00 509,471.84 440,000.00 1,092,000.00
307 · Bulk Water 3,010.36 500.00 12,375.54 2,000.00 6,000.00
302 · Connection 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,300.00
301 · Taxes Rcvd

3090 · Oakridge / OAWA  Assess... 0.00 0.00 160,140.73
301 · Taxes Rcvd - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 66,000.00

Total 301 · Taxes Rcvd 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 226,140.73

304 · Other Office Income & Reimbu... 0.00 0.00 412.13 500.00 3,000.00
306 · Interest 1,490.49 900.00 5,990.09 3,300.00 12,000.00
312 · Grant Revenue 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,625.00 1,750.00 2,600.00

Total Income 122,113.50 102,400.00 529,874.60 449,050.00 1,355,040.73

Gross Profit 122,113.50 102,400.00 529,874.60 449,050.00 1,355,040.73

Expense
Operations

403 · Fuel 1,317.10 830.00 4,184.98 3,320.00 10,000.00
404 · Truck Maint 288.94 1,000.00 2,865.61 2,000.00 5,000.00
431 · System Repair & Maint 4,743.50 5,000.00 17,500.37 20,000.00 60,000.00
463 · Water Analysis 707.00 500.00 2,632.00 2,000.00 6,000.00
464 · Water Treatment 797.87 792.00 5,485.34 3,164.00 9,500.00
468 · Tools 0.00 800.00 544.34 2,600.00 7,500.00
470 · Public Outreach / Annexation 0.00 330.00 -60.00 1,320.00 4,000.00

Total Operations 7,854.41 9,252.00 33,152.64 34,404.00 102,000.00

Power
449.75 · 388 Blohm, # C -53.44 17.00 -1.64 66.00 200.00
449.5 · 388 Blohm, A & B Office 129.50 130.00 448.87 520.00 1,600.00
461.5 · RLS Tank Booster 9.86 11.00 36.14 44.00 125.00
447 · Leo Ln Booster 35.69 35.00 137.03 139.00 400.00
448 · Aimee Mdws Well 9.86 11.00 35.49 44.00 125.00
451 · Marshall Corp Yard 35.66 42.00 127.09 168.00 500.00
452 · Rea Booster @ Seely 39.20 34.00 141.16 135.00 400.00
454 · Carr Booster 500.04 390.00 1,929.69 1,560.00 4,500.00
458 · Pleasant Acres Well 2,098.25 1,200.00 7,348.31 4,700.00 12,000.00
459 · Seely Booster @ Carpenteria 19.71 30.00 71.64 125.00 300.00
460 · San Juan Well 4,767.23 4,000.00 18,032.19 15,500.00 45,000.00
461 · Cole Tank 12.75 16.00 45.90 62.00 175.00
462 · Rea Tank 12.68 16.00 45.46 62.00 175.00
465 - Lwr Oakridge Boost 111.30 90.00 4,415.48 350.00 1,000.00
465.5 - Upper Oakridge Booster 150.00 50.00 300.00 200.00 600.00
466 · Pine Tree Tank 12.80 12.50 46.04 50.00 150.00

Total Power 7,891.09 6,084.50 33,158.85 23,725.00 67,250.00

Payroll
Gross 33,948.07 33,700.00 134,632.21 134,800.00 405,740.00
Comp FICA 2,104.79 2,096.00 8,347.20 8,384.00 25,156.00
Comp MCARE 492.27 490.00 1,952.18 1,960.00 5,883.00
Comp SUI 74.15 195.00 250.23 775.00 2,335.00

Total Payroll 36,619.28 36,481.00 145,181.82 145,919.00 439,114.00

Employee / Labor  Costs
407 · Outside Services 156.52 500.00 2,780.72 2,000.00 6,000.00
408 · Uniform Allowance 0.00 0.00 319.07 375.00 1,500.00
409 · Workers Comp 935.55 1,058.00 4,502.55 4,232.00 12,702.00
410 · Health Ins 3,994.61 5,852.00 23,492.74 23,408.00 70,224.00
474 · Education 565.30 500.00 1,124.29 2,000.00 6,000.00
477 · Retirement 6,121.93 6,159.00 24,273.99 24,636.00 73,914.00

Total Employee / Labor  Costs 11,773.91 14,069.00 56,493.36 56,651.00 170,340.00

12:45 PM Aromas Water District
11/19/18 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
Accrual Basis October 2018

87



Oct 18 Budget Jul - Oct 18 YTD Budget Annual Budget

Office
440 · Misc Exp 562.00 330.00 1,255.72 1,320.00 4,000.00
444 · Postage 255.52 280.00 1,041.78 1,120.00 4,000.00
445 · Office Supplies 25.09 330.00 464.54 1,320.00 4,000.00
446 · Office Eqpmt and Maint 1,319.85 780.00 2,223.86 3,120.00 10,000.00

Total Office 2,162.46 1,720.00 4,985.90 6,880.00 22,000.00

Communications
455 · Phone, Off 347.07 290.00 1,352.84 1,160.00 3,500.00
456 · Telemetry 299.15 300.00 1,198.28 1,200.00 3,600.00
457 · Answ Serv/Cellular Phone 241.47 300.00 993.64 1,200.00 3,600.00

Total Communications 887.69 890.00 3,544.76 3,560.00 10,700.00

Administrative & General
4593 · Bond Issue Cost 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,875.00
4592 · Professional Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,215.68
4591 · Admin Fee (Bond Admin N... 0.00 0.00 1,707.24 840.00 8,423.16
4590 · Bond Interest Exp - Assess... 0.00 0.00 65,065.19 68,588.00 137,176.42
Int Pymts LoansCapital Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,393.35
417 · Capital Loan Interest 18,006.11 18,410.00 18,006.11 18,410.00 36,820.00
467.5 · Amortization Exp 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00
467 - Depreciation Reserve 22,000.00 22,000.00 88,000.00 88,000.00 266,352.00
405 · Election 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,200.00
406 · Liability Ins 1,556.24 1,600.00 6,062.96 6,400.00 20,000.00
420 · Legal Fees 1,300.00 1,340.00 5,200.00 5,280.00 16,000.00
422 · Bank Charges 183.44 80.00 677.27 320.00 1,000.00
423 · Litigation Contingency 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00
425 · Audit 0.00 2,500.00 8,311.00 5,000.00 11,625.00
471 · Bad Debts 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00
473 · Memberships 4,139.00 6,000.00 4,827.86 7,700.00 16,000.00

Total Administrative & General 47,184.79 51,930.00 197,857.63 200,538.00 548,080.61

Total Expense 114,373.63 120,426.50 474,374.96 471,677.00 1,359,484.61

Net Ordinary Income 7,739.87 -18,026.50 55,499.64 -22,627.00 -4,443.88

Net Income 7,739.87 -18,026.50 55,499.64 -22,627.00 -4,443.88

12:45 PM Aromas Water District
11/19/18 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
Accrual Basis October 2018

88



Date Num Name Amount

UB Checking
10/17/2018 NSF Bill Adjustment Report -222.94
10/23/2018 16931 Varela (P), Sandra -594.75
10/24/2018 16932 Andrew Russell -121.17
10/24/2018 16933 Planned Environments -220.14
10/24/2018 16934 Val King -4.90
10/24/2018 16935 Underground Construction Co, Inc. -319.74
10/24/2018 16936 ACE Hardware Prunedale -169.16
10/24/2018 16937 ACWA JPIA, Emp. Ben. Prog. -3,994.61
10/24/2018 16938 Aromas Water District (Petty Cash) -387.35
10/24/2018 16939 CSSC -90.85
10/24/2018 16940 David DeAlba -51.38
10/24/2018 16941 Iflow Energy Solutions Inc. -4,460.00
10/24/2018 16942 Mid Valley Supply -797.87
10/24/2018 16943 Powers Electric Products Co -997.08
10/24/2018 16944 R & B Company -756.50
10/24/2018 16945 Sage Software Inc -1,107.00
10/24/2018 16946 USA BlueBook -365.67
10/24/2018 16947 Valero -897.06
10/24/2018 16948 Verizon Wireless -100.62
10/24/2018 16949 Xerox Corp -19.16
10/29/2018 E-pay Employment Development Dept -6.99
10/29/2018 E-pay United States Treasury (EFTPS) -106.92
10/29/2018 E-pay Employment Development Dept -770.04
10/29/2018 E-pay United States Treasury (EFTPS) -4,137.08
10/29/2018 Paid Online P G & E -111.30
10/30/2018 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service -6,947.73
10/31/2018 DD1286 Coombes (P), Louise P 0.00
10/31/2018 DD1287 Giron (P), Ester 0.00
10/31/2018 DD1288 Johnson (P), Robert L 0.00
10/31/2018 DD1289 Zelmar (P), Trevor J 0.00
10/31/2018 16950 DeAlba (P), David -3,405.51
10/31/2018 EFT CalPERS -2,359.08
10/31/2018 EFT CalPERS -1,098.47
10/31/2018 EFT Bank Service Fees -192.44
11/02/2018 EFT CalPERS -3,495.42
11/02/2018 NSF Bill Adjustment Report -86.20
11/05/2018 16951 USPO -50.00
11/05/2018 16952 A T & T U-verse -69.25
11/05/2018 16953 CALNET3 -576.97
11/05/2018 16954 David DeAlba -21.80
11/05/2018 16955 Louise Coombes -477.05
11/05/2018 16956 Monterey Bay Analytical Services Inc -707.00
11/05/2018 16957 Rob Johnson -50.00
11/05/2018 16958 Sandra Varela -28.08
11/05/2018 16959 Simonds Machinery Co. Inc -1,755.86
11/05/2018 16960 Streamline -100.00
11/05/2018 16961 United Way serving San Benito County -38.00
11/05/2018 16962 USA BlueBook -477.98
11/05/2018 16963 USPO -205.52
11/08/2018 NSF Bill Adjustment Report -84.07
11/08/2018 NSF Bill Adjustment Report -73.54

Aromas Water District
11/16/18 Monthly Expenditures

October 17 through November 16, 2018

89



Date Num Name Amount

11/08/2018 NSF Bill Adjustment Report -886.80
11/08/2018 Paid Online P G & E -7,683.23
11/08/2018 Paid credit P G & E 0.00
11/08/2018 Paid Online First Bankcard -1,303.27
11/14/2018 16964 Granite Drilling -584.68
11/14/2018 16965 Seth Capron -761.60
11/14/2018 16966 ACE Hardware Prunedale -65.68
11/14/2018 16967 ACWA JPIA, Emp. Ben. Prog. -5,940.95
11/14/2018 16968 AWWA -433.00
11/14/2018 16969 Brigantino Irrigation -282.92
11/14/2018 16970 California Special Districts Assoc -3,587.00
11/14/2018 16971 Monterey Bay Analytical Services Inc -154.00
11/14/2018 16972 Pajaro Valley Lock Shop -39.88
11/14/2018 16973 Recology San Benito County -34.66
11/14/2018 16974 Robert E. Bosso -1,300.00
11/14/2018 16975 USA BlueBook -105.61
11/14/2018 16976 Xerox Corp -20.02
11/14/2018 E-pay Employment Development Dept -692.10
11/14/2018 E-pay United States Treasury (EFTPS) -4,062.10
11/15/2018 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service -10,638.66
11/16/2018 DD1293 Coombes (P), Louise P 0.00
11/16/2018 DD1294 DeAlba (P), David 0.00
11/16/2018 DD1295 Giron (P), Ester 0.00
11/16/2018 DD1296 Johnson (P), Robert L 0.00
11/16/2018 DD1297 Zelmar (P), Trevor J 0.00
11/16/2018 16977 Dutra (P), Marcus -214.68
11/16/2018 16978 Holman (P), Wayne R -214.67
11/16/2018 DD1290 Leap (P), James E 0.00
11/16/2018 DD1291 Norton (P), K W 0.00
11/16/2018 DD1292 Smith (P), Richard 0.00
11/16/2018 EFT CalPERS -882.93
11/16/2018 EFT CalPERS -2,156.27

Total UB Checking -85,154.96

TOTAL -85,154.96

Aromas Water District
11/16/18 Monthly Expenditures

October 17 through November 16, 2018

90




